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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
31 31 31 31 31
IFRS
100,517 103,143 86,956 84,408 83,467
13,000 13,339 11,246 10,916 10,795
12,918 15,539 14,139 14,395 18,456
1,671 2,010 1,829 1,862 2,387
13,107 40,536 (11,330) (3,004) (9,463)
1,695 5,243 (1,465) (389) (1,224)
908 908 908 908 908
117 117 117 117 117
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
128,926 169,717 158,302 155,465 146,006
16,674 21,949 20,473 20,106 18,883
6,270,915 | 7,834,149 | 6,797,892 | 7,953,499 | 9,322,796
811,017 | 1,013,190 879,171 | 1,028,626 | 1,205,717
64,463 84,859 79,151 77,733 73,003
8,337,000 | 10,974,814 | 10,236,599 | 10,053,209 | 9,441,478
6,554 20,268 (5,665) (1,502) (4,732)
847,629 | 2,621,260 (732,654)|  (194,254)|  (611,990)
2.056 2.166 2.329 1.955 1.566
10.166 23.884 (7.157) (1.932) (6.481)
(1,128,978)|  (342,928) 190,424 (703,196)| (1,979,679)
(146,011) (44,351) 24,628 (90,944)[  (256,032)
86 118 27 45 49
11 15 3 6 6
1,130,630 418,629 (264,894) 704,547 | 2,103,808
146,224 54,141 (34,259) 91,119 272,085
1,389 78,089 2,071 1,872 126,633
180 10,099 268 242 16,377
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2018 31 12 2017 31 12 84,408
1.1 83,467 2018 31 12
2017 31 12 70,013 7.1 65,011
2018 31
2017 31 7,317,966 8,741,070 19.4
2018 31 12 2017 31 12
14,395 28.2 18,456
2018 31 12 2017 31 12 3,814
210 11,815
2018 31 12 2017 31 12 13,692
25,709
2018 31 12 2017 31 12 3,004
215 9,463
2018 31 2017 31 3,738 11.9 4,181
2018 31
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@
31
2017 2018
5 81,804 10,580 80,332 10,389
6 2,604 337 3,135 405
84,408 10,916 83,467 10,795
7 (62,489)|  (8,082)]  (55,113) (7.128)
8 (7.524) (973) (9,898) (1,280)
(70,013)|  (9,055)]  (65,011) (8,408)
14,395 1,862 18,456 2,387
9 (4,562) (590) (4,611) (596)
10 @13,692)] (@771  (25.709) (3,325)
11 45 6 49 6
(3,814) (493)|  (11,815) (1,528)
13 810 105 2,352 304
(3,004) (389) (9,463) (1,224)
28 167 22 4 1
(2,837) (367) (9,459) (1,223)
(2,837) (367) (9,459) (1,223)

45/218




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
@
31
2017 2018
14 | 3,470,478 448,837 | 3,750,637 485,070
20 102,764 13,290 246,327 31,857
21 88 11
16 162,990 21,079 57,761 7,470
22 1,872 242 126,634 16,378
3,738,192 483,460 | 4,181,359 540,775
14 | 3,847,488 497,596 | 4,990,433 645,413
16 366,704 47,426 148,235 19,171
15 1,115 144 1,119 145
17
19 1,650 213
4,215,307 545,166 | 5,141,437 664,942
23 3,600,166 465,609 | 3,836,448 496,168
16 125,301 16,205 91,263 11,803
24 5,332 690 7,431 961
21 1,209 156
25 372,567 48,184 62,899 8,135
22 1 0
4,103,366 530,688 | 3,999,251 517,223
(365,174) (47,228)| 182,108 23,552
23 3,610,575 466,956 | 4,920,462 636,363
16 79,382 10,266 257,077 33,248
19 4,711 609
3,694,668 477,831 | 5,177,539 669,611
155,465 20,106 146,006 18,883
27 908 117 908 117
154,197 19,942 144,734 18,718
28 360 47 364 47
155,465 20,106 146,006 18,883
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(©)
2016 31 908 117 | 157,201 | 20,331 193 25 | 158,302 | 20,473
28 167 22 167 22
(3,004)|  (389) (3,004)]  (389)
(3,004)|  (389) 167 22| (2.837) (367)
2017 31 908 117 | 154,197 | 19,942 360 47 | 155,465 | 20,106
28 4 1 4 1
(9.463)| (1,224) (9.463)| (1,224)
(9.463)| (1,224) 4 1] (9,459 (1,223)
2018 31 908 117 | 144,734 | 18,718 364 47 | 146,006 | 18,883
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31
2017 2018
(3,004) (389) (9,463) (1,224)
7 1

(45) ®) (49) ®)
(810) (105) (2,352) (304)
(81,804)|  (10,580)|  (80,332)|  (10,389)

62,489 8,082 55,113 7,128

(216,212)|  (27,963)| 462,700 59,841
252,897 32,707 | (528,997)|  (68,415)
(894,873)|  (115,734)| (1,458,806)| (188,667)
19,555 2,529 | (141,463)[  (18,295)
133,540 17,2711 | (309,693)|  (40,053)
(728,260)|  (94,186)| (2,013,342)| (260,386)

82,733 10,700 78,057 10,095
(54,465) @7.044)|  (41,683) (5,391)
(3,204) (414) (2,711) (351)

(703,196)|  (90,944)| (1,979,679)| (256,032)

11 45 6 49 6
45 6 49 6

19,669,071 | 2,543,801 | 25,616,623 | 3,312,998
(18,964,524)| (2,452,682)|(23,512,815)| (3,040,912)

704,547 91,119 [ 2,103,808 | 272,085
1,396 181 124,178 16,060

2,071 268 1,872 242

(1,595) (206) 583 75

22 1,872 242 126,633 16,377
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IFRS
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FVoCI
FVTPL IAS 39
AFS FVTPL

SPPI FVOCI IAS 39
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IFRS
IFRS 15 IFRS 15 IFRS

IFRS E3 E7

IFRS 16 IFRS 16 IFRS
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IFRS IFRIC
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IFRS
2017 2018

( ) ( )
26,472 22,478
22,436 21,245
9,314 9,853
5,112 8,690
5,953 7,517
2,770 3,235
10,910 8,782
1,441 1,667
84,408 83,467

2017 2018

( ) ( )
80,364 78,665
22 389
842 870
576 371
37
81,804 80,332

2018 3,135,000 2017
2,604,000
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2017 2018

( ) ( )
(114,315) (96,675)
(15,319) (21,523)
(4,607) (19,101)
(543) (1,221)
(3,065) (1,216)
(248) (293)

1
1,473 3,010
74,134 81,906
(62,489) (55,113)
TFS
9,898,000 2017 7,524,000
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2017 2018
( ) ( )
(1,438) (1,241)
(716) (721)
(740) (678)
(416) (615)
(307) (379)
(149) (169)
(110) (109)
(81) (87)
(23) (21)
(575) (591)
)
(4,562) (4,611)
10 2017
2017 2018
( ) ( )
(1,341) (1,121)
(57) (74)
(40) (46)
(1,438) (1,241)
2017 2018
( ) ( )
(402) 271)
(402) 271)




10

11

2017

¢ D

(

(
25,709,000

45,000

2017
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2017 2018
( ) )

325,738 (548,838)

(24,606) (249,582)

(301,176) 798,152

(44) (268)

(13,648) (25,441)

(13,692) (25,709)
13,692,000 2018

TLT 49,000



12

EY

PwC

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

EY 2018 2017
2017 2018

( ) ( )
(145)
(130) (15)
(45) (18)
(80) 74)
(52) (53)
EY 74)
(307) (379)

EY
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2017
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2018

(3,287)
685

(4,557)
548

(2,602)

3,412

(4,008)

6,361

810

2,352

2017

2018
)

(3,814)
24.90

950

14
(849)
@

11

685

(11,815)
24.93
2,945
19
(1,170)
@
11
548

810

2,352

2018 25 2017 25
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14
2017 2018
( ) ( )
3,470,478 3,750,637
3,847,488 4,990,433
7,317,966 8,741,070
2018 31
(0.805) 12.55
15
TLT 0.047 2017 0.047 TLT
51.4 1,000 51,400,000,000
15,100,000,000 1997 750,000
TLT 2018 31
TLT TLT
TLT
2017 2018
T ( ) ( )
948 1,115
167 4

1,115 1,119
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2017 2018
( ) )
198 129
153,952 53,420
8,840 4,212
162,990 57,761
1,575 1,755
365,129 146,480
366,704 148,235
529,694 205,996
2017 2018
( ) )
1,409 1,691
123,402 89,177
490 395
125,301 91,263
4,143 3,437
75,239 253,640
79,382 257,077
204,683 348,340
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17
2017 2018
( ) ( )
2016/2017 82 82
82 82
2016/2017 75 82
7
82 82
2016/2017 7
2017/2018 31
18
2017 2018
( ) ( )
2016/2017 9 9
9 9
2016/2017 9 9
9 9
2016/2017
2017/2018 31
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25.0
88,000

2016/2017

2017

25.0

25.0

2018
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ooooooo
2017 2018
( ) ( )
(8,123) (4,711)
3,412 6,361
(4,711) 1,650
2017 2018
( ) ( )
39 36
32 32
95,900 237,000
63 9
10
1,355 1,787
33 32
5,332 7,431
102,764 246,327
2018
2018 31 2017

31 1,209,000 2017
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2017 2018
( ) ( )
1,872 4,568
122,066
¢
1,872 126,633
2018 31
23
2017 2018
1,504,171 2,453,947
1,443,137 2,669,716 1,181,566 3,754,165
382,597
270,261 940,859 200,935 1,166,297
3,600,166 3,610,575 3,836,448 4,920,462
2017 2018
1,736,894 1,601,670 404,753
900,759 1,902,605 1,499,026 2,345,706
499,182 1,099,670 102,795 1,188,538
173,170 608,300 236,744 375,699
290,161 396,213 605,766
3,600,166 3,610,575 3,836,448 4,920,462

68/218



69/218

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
2016 2017
2017 31 2018 31
( ) ( )
956,312 1,504,171
2 612
17,630,019 22,450,829
(17,142,290) (21,457,527)
(493) 833
60,621 (44,971)
1,504,171 2,453,947
3,475,704 4,112,853
578 (7,016)
831,351 2,612,695
(455,891) (1,467,358)
10,147 13,669
250,964 (329,112)
4,112,853 4,935,731
2016 2017
2017 31 2018 31
( ) ( )
544,710 382,597
(199) (510)
926,757
(1,110,341) (380,581)
21,670 (1,506)
382,597 0
1,133,914 1,211,120
974 658
280,943 553,099
(256,002) (207,348)
429 413
50,862 (190,710)
1,211,120 1,367,232
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364
LIBOR
2018 31 0.25 2.225
2018 31 3,836,448,000 2017 3,600,166,000
4,920,462,000 2017 3,610,575,000
24
7,431,000 2017 5,332,000
25
2017 2018
( ) ( )

367,600 56,600

19 44

4,243 5,525

583 590

121 139

1 1

372,567 62,899
26

TFS
27

2018 2017
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27
2017 2018
( ) ( )
454 10,000 2017 10,000 ) 4,540 4,540
454 2,000 2017 2,000 ) 908 908
100 TFS
2017 26 2017
2018
28
( )
2016 193
167
2017 31 360
4
2018 31 364
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TTNI

2017

AO

TFS 100

TFS
9,898,000
4,019,000

2017

UK
UK

UK
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7,524,000 5,345,000
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3,135,000 2017 2,604,000
1,787,000 2017 1,355,000
TLT 49,000 2017
2018 31
23
2017 2018
( ) ( )
544,710 382,597
926,757
(1,110,341) (380,581)
3,065 1,216
(3.265) (1,726)
21,671 (1,506)

382,597 0
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2017 2018
( ) ( )
6,291,307 7,317,966
6,338,369 7,907,769
(5,443,496) (6,448,963)
80,364 78,665
(81,293) (76,390)
(543) (1,221)
441 1,131
132,817 (37,887)
7,317,966 8,741,070
14
2017 2018
( ) ( )
4,019 5,345
224 180
4,243 5,525
2017 2018
( ) ( )
1,355 1,787
1,355 1,787
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30
2018 31
31 2017 2018
( ) ( )
16,909 24,156
50,072 70,951
338,529 424,115
1,377,013 1,670,907
1,782,523 2,190,129
31
31.1
TFS
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2017 2018
) ( )
3,856 1,355
1,029 1,338
27 136
4,912 2,829
2017
( ) ( )
(184) (18) (202)
184 18 202
2018
( ) )
(106) (18) (124)
106 18 124
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31.3
VaR
VaR
ALCO
VaR
95
VaR 12
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR VaR ALCO
2017 2017 31
VaR 4,346 823 2,111 1,923
2018 2018 31

VaR 4,022 733 1,913 733

77/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

Ogoooood
VaR
VaR

2017 31
1,764,538 2,082,950 3,847,488
1,115 1,115
1,374,523 2,095,955 3,470,478
1,355 1,355
95,910 167 96,077
1,872 1,872
cp (219,948)  (1,284,223) (1,504,171)
EMTN (1,001,178) (441,959) (1,443,137)
(270,261) (270,261)
(382,597) (382,597)
(4,243) (4,243)
(367,619) (705) (368,324)
EMTN (2,482,252) (187,464) (2,669,716)
(940, 859) (940, 859)
@ (564,317) 401,705 (2,311) (164,923)
) 566,430 (241,105) (314) 325,011
@)+(b) 2,113 160,600 (2,625) 160,088
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2018 31
2,652,314 2,338,119 4,990,433
1,119 1,119
1,520,220 2,230,417 3,750,637
1,787 1,787
237,000 109 237,109
126,634 126,634
cP (2,453,947) (2,453,947)
EMTN (365,560) (816,006) (1,181,566)
(56) (200,879) (200,935)
(5,525) (5,525)
(56,644) (730) (57,374)
(€Y) @
EMTN (2,470,418)  (1,283,747) (3,754,165)
(304,216) (862,081) (1,166,297)
) 1,032,284 (741,135) (3.240) 287,909
(b) (971,716) 829,448 (76) (142,344)
@)+(b) 60,568 88,313 (3,316) 145,565
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31.4

2018 31 Aa3
TFS
2017 2018

( ) ( )
3,470,478 3,750,637
97,432 238,896
162,990 57,761
1,872 126,634
3,847,488 4,990,433
366,704 148,235
1,782,523 2,190,129
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2018 31 25
56,600,000 2017 367,600,000

30

2017 137,029,000 46,228,000
305,403,000

30
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2017 31

12
( ) «( ) «( ) «( )
180,897 203,049
4,500 282,327 976,698
514,742 991,138
EMTN 570,375 945,767 2,827,521
367,600
1,638,114 2,422,281 3,804,219
2018 31 12
( ) «( ) «( ) ( )
7,935 224,936 1,216,810
1,739,811 714,956
EMTN 333,296 1,101,876 3,828,449

56,600

2,137,642 2,041,768 5,045,259
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31

12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

3,172 2,622 4,551

(1,302,432)  (2,053,127)  (5,081,498)

1,359,567 1,886,522 4,657,081

60,307 (163,983) (419, 866)

1,698,421 2,258,298 3,384,353

31 1

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

2 2,770 9,176

(1,208,138)  (1,997,974)  (6,156,124)
1,218,075 1,930,083 6,115,354

9,939 (65,121) (31,594)

2,147,581 1,976,647 5,013,665
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2017 31 1
( ) ( ) ( ) )
2,853,033
2,853,033
2018 31 1
( ) ) ) )
3,240,566
3,240,566
31.6
31.7
/
2017 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
529,679 (204,683) (271,700) 53,296
15 15
529,694 (204,683) (271,700) 53,311
/
2018 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
205,961 (348,340) 180,400 38,021
35 35
205,996 (348,340) 180,400 38,056
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2017 31
) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,115 1,115
529,694 529,694
204,683 204,683
2018 31
) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,119 1,119
205,996 205,996
348,340 348,340
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32.2

2017 31 2018 31

7,317,966 7,364,952 8,741,070 8,816,460
5,332 5,332 7,431 7,431

382,597 382,600
1,211,120 1,227,707 1,367,232 1,389,112
1,504,171 1,504,171 2,453,947 2,453,947
4,112,853 4,177,245 4,935,731 4,951,570
5,332 5,332 7,431 7,431

EMTN
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Statement of comprehensive incomae for the year ended 31 March 20418

Hote 2018 21T
€000 L]

Inbarest income ] B 333 81,804
Guarantae fee incoms & 3,135 2804
HRawvanue B3, 48T 84,404
Inteieat akpenaes T {55,113) (B2,485)
Fon sxpanses B (B,58E8) 7, 524)
Cont of lunging {B5.011) [70,013)
Gross profi 1B 455 14,385
Admintstration expanses ] [#.811) 4563
Nat laases o fina ncial instruments 10 (25,708 (¥3.682)
Divicand Income 11 44 45
Loks bealans tax (11,818 (3,814}
Tazatian 13 2352 B0
LLixpas for Ehe year 15,463 (3. 004}
Onher comprehansive ncome, nel of b
Ibemna tha will be reclassified subsequently to Proft or Loas
Faif walus gaind on avaiable for sales ineestmsnis an 4 1687
Tata! comprehmnsive losa for the yead (5 A5G (2,837}
Abtributsble te:
Owners of the parent {9,458) (2,837)

The notes on pages 9 1o 359 are an nlegral part af these Financial Statemenis

CRY

FOR IEMTIFICATI
S ErnsT & YouNe

ACCOM INTANTE

5
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018

Mete 2018 2017
000 €000
Arsois
Current assets
Loans to related companies 14 3,750,637 J4T04TE
Other receivables 20 246,327 102.764
Cumant tax assats 21 - =1 ]
Darmmive financsl instrumenis 18 57,781 162,880
Cash and cash squsvaiants 22 125 634 1872
Tata! current assets 4,161,358 3,738,182
Mon-curment assats
Lewans 1o reisted companses. 14 4,800,433 3,BaT 4BR
Dartvalhve Enancisl insirumants 18 148,236 366,704
Aviilable-for-sale irvestmant - related company 15 1118 1,115
Propary, plant and equipment 17 2 &
Daferred fax assets 19 1,650 -
Tatal non-current asses 5141437 4215 307
Linbilities
Curront liabilitios
5 23 3,635 448 3,600,166
Darvative fnancial inatrumants 18 81,283 125,300
Fmancial guararies Lablity 24 TAN 5,332
Cairment tax liabikty 21 13808 E
Other liabilities and accrsec axpensas 25 62,864 T2, 56T
Bank overdraf 22 1 E:
Toba! currant Eabilties 3,596,251 4,103,368
Nat curnent assats [Nabiitss) 182,108 (355,174)
Mon-cummant liabilities
Barowings 23 4 920,452 3,810,575
Dervative Bnancial insthaments 18 28T T 78,382
Defesred tax lakilities 18 ¥ 4,711
Total nan-cusrent Gakilities 5177530 3,694, 668
Met assels 146,006 155,465
Shareholders equity
Equity attributable to cwrers of the parent
Share capital a7 il ] B8
Ratained samings 144 T4 154167
Foir vadun resarve 28 B4
Total shareholder's equity 148,008 185,485
Thi males on pages © 1o 38 are an mlegral pad of thess Financial Staremants
£
FIOR IDENTIFICA Ny
S ErnsT & ¥0UN:
ACCOUMTANTS
&
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Altributable to owners of the parent Mote Share Ratained Fair Valia Total
Capital Earmings Resorves

€00d €000 €o0a €00
Balance at 31 Manch 2018 08 187,201 193 158,302
Fair value gains A - - 167 167
Result for tha yoar - (3,008) . {3,004)
Tatad gomprehenshae incame for the
vear - 13,004) 187 (2.B37)
Balanco at 31 March 2017 B8 154,197 360 155465
Faair valun gaing 8 . . i L]
Reesult for the year - [9.453) - (#,483)
Tuotal compiahanahe incoma for the
year - [9,453) 4 (0,455
Balance at 31 March 2018 508 144,734 364 146,006

Thie nobes on pages O ta 30 &fa B inkegral pan of thass Financisl StMements

Thw

FOR IDEMTIFICATION

I ErpsT & YOUNG

ACCDUNTANTS

7
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANGE (NETHERLANDS) B.W.

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2018

Hoate 018 27
€000 €000
Loss for the year (B.463) [3,004)
Adjustmants: for;

Depreciation and amonisation - 7
Dhidend income (43 45
Taxaticn {2.352) (B10)
Interest income (80,332 (81 B4
Inferest pxpense 55,113 G2.4E0
Fair value undealised gans and esses 452,700 (216.212)
Unrealised foreign axchengs gaing and lossss (528.697) 252897
Increass in kaans b0 miabed comparies {1,458,808) (B0, BT 3)
(Increass) | dacranss in olther current assets (141, 463) 16,585
Incrense | {decrease) in other curment kablitks (205803 123,540
(2,013,342 {728,260
Irferesd rocoked 78,057 82,733
Iraarest paid {41,583 {54, 485)
Tax paid 2711) (3,204)
Cash flow from aperating activities {1,970,678) (T3, 188)
Dwvicand recaived " L] 45
Canh ffow firom nvesling activities 48 48

Proceads from Bormwings. 25616623 19,660,071

Repaymant of bonewings [23,512.815) (16,568 524)
Cash flew fram financing sctbvities 2,103,808 704 547
Hal ncraasa in cash and cesh squvnlents 124,178 1,386
Cash and cash sgutalests gl the begianing of the year 1,872 207
Exthange kasses on cash and cash equbmionis 583 {1,595
Cash and cash equivalents at tha end of the year 22 126,633 1,872

Tha nodes on pages & to 35 are an infegrad part of thess Firanclal Stalemants
ERW
PO IDEMTIFCATION
7 ERWST & YOUNC
ACTH WTANTS

a
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.  General information

Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV, {the Company’) i @ wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyola Financlal
Services Corporalion. The prncipal activity of the Company is 1o act as a group Bnance subsidiary. The
Company rmises funds by issuing bonds and notes in the international capital markets and from ather sources
and on- lends lo othar Toyota companies, The Company Biso Bsues guaraniess for debl ssuance of othar
Toyola companies.

Thie Company is incorporated and domicled in the Netherlands. The address of ils registened office is World
Trade Center. Tower H, Level 10, Zuldpleln 80, 1077 XV, Amsterdam, the Nefherands

The ullimate management company and controding party and the langest undaertaking inte which the Company's
resulls ane consolidated is Toyota Molor Corporation, which is incerparated i Jagan,

The smallest undertaking ints which the Company's resulls anw consolidated is Toyota Finencial Services
Caorporatian, which is incomporated in Japan.

The Financial Staternents of Toyota Motor Corporation can be oblained from
ittpctiveenn boyola-giobal com.

These Financial Statements have been approved fer issue by the Board of Management on 24 July 2015,
2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounling policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Stalements. are sel oul below,
These policies have baoen consistenty applied to 2l the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

The Company haa na subsidiary, joint ventune or associated company investments and is therefore not required
to prapare consolidated financial statamonts.

Basis of preparation

= The Financial Staternents of the Company have been prepared in scoordanca with |memational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations lssued by the |ntefnabonal Financal Reporing
Interpratations Committes ([FRIC) as adopled by the Ewcpean Unien and also in accordance with ihe
siatulory provisions of Past 8, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

* As a result of the accounting polices adopied, (he Finencial Statements of the Company are aisg
consmslend with all IFRS issued by the Intemational Accounling Standards Board (IASB) and
interpretations isswed by IFRIC.

* The Fenancial Statements have been prepared under the hislorical cosl corvantion, as modified by the
revaluation o fakr vakues of avallable-for-sale fnancial assels, and financial sssets and labiities at fair
value through profit or loss.

* The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires (he use of cedtain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management {o exercise Bs judgement in the process of applying
the Company's acoounting policies. The areas involving a higher degres of judgemant or complexity, or
areas where assumplions and estimates are significant to the Financial Stalemeants are disclased in note
3,

* The Company's Financial Statemens are presented in Euro, which is the Company's funclional and
repadting currancy. Except as indicated financia! informaton presonted has been presentad in Euro and
raunded ta the neares! thousand.

Going concern

There was an excass of current aegets aver curren] kabilibes al 31 March 2018, Menagement of liquidity risk
is explained in note 31.5 and, having assessed the available liquidity facilitles and credil suppoet faciiities in
place, the dirsciors have a reasonabée expectation that the Company has adequate rescurce (o conbinues to
fund its current obligations for the foreseeatde future and therefore the Financiel Stataments have been
prapared on & golng concem basis.

o 1R
FOR IDENTIFCATION

B ERNST & YOUNT
ACCOUNTANTS
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
Mow and amended standards offoctive for the financial year starting 1 April 2017

Amandment lo 1AS 7 Slatement of cash fows speciies that an anlity shall previde disclosures thal anabla
users of francial slatemnents lo avaluate changes in Eabilfles arising from financing activifies, including both
changes arising fram cash flows and non-cash changes,

IAS 12 income Taxes implemants a so-cabed ‘comprehensive balance shesl method' of accounting for
incoma taxes which recognises bath the current tax consequences of ransactions and events and the fiure
tax consequences of the fulune resovery or satiement of the camying amounl of an entity’s assets and
linbities, Differences batwaan the camying amount and tax base of pssals and Eabiies, and carried farward

lax losses and credils, ae recognisad, with Emiled axceptons, as deferred fax llabliiies or deferred tax
asseis.

New standards, amendmeants and Interpretations issusd but not offective for the financlal year
beginning 1 April 2017 and not early adopted

IFRS 2, Financial mstrumants, addrasses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial labizies.

IFRS 8 Financial instruments was endorsed by the EU in Novermber 2016. This endarsament means that
IFRS 8 will apply ta the Company fram 1 April 2018 onwards and that the Comgany will apply these principles
retrospactively from such date. In line with the ransiienal provisions of the glandard, the Company will nat
restale comparailve figures, IFRS 9 will replace the current standard for recognitien and measyremend of
financial instruments (1AS 39) and includes rnequiremants for the dassification and measurement of financial
ingtrurnents, impairment of financial assets, and hedge accounting, The naw impairmant model for financial
assels s an expected credii loss model, and is sxpected io result in tha earfier recognition of credil insses,
The Company does nol expect a signifcant impact on s statement of finencial position or equily on apglying
the dassification and measuremant requirements of IFRS 8,

Classification and measurement

The classificalion and measurement of financial assets under IFRS 9 s determined by the business mocel in
which the assets are held and whather the contractual cash fliows are solsly paymaenits of principal and interest
{SPPI). Under IFRS 8, financial asseis can be measured at amoriised cost, fair vaiue through sther
comprahanstve income (FVOCIH) or fair value through peofit or loss (FYTPL), These categordes replace the 1AS
39 classifications. of loans and recelvables, Availabie for Sale (AFS), FYTPL. and held-to-maturity.

The business modal in which a fnancial assel is held is determined at portfolio level. Portlolios are based on
how groups of financial assots ar maneged together 1o achieve a particulsr business objective. Financial
assats can only be classified &t amortised cost or FVOC! when the contractual cash Aows ase SPPL Tha
clzszification and measurement of financial liabilities rernains the same as under |AS 39 Thete ware na olhar
significant changes in the dassification and measurement of financial instruments as at 1 Aol 2018,

Impairmants

IFRS 8 replaces the 'incurred loss’ madel with the 'expected credit loss madel’, which is designed io be
forward-looking. The standard requires a three stage approach 1o measure expected credit losses on fnancial
assets tha are measured ol amortised cost or FYOC, aswell 8s for loan commibments and financial guaraniee
coniracis. The Company's dervalives counterpary exposirs is collateralised and this collateral is assesaad
weekly, as described in the Financsl Risk Management chapter, cradit risk, of the Annual Repen, Additianally,
expasures are short-tarm and the portion of the lifetime expected credit iosses associated wilh defaull avents
occurring in the next 12 months will be equivalent o the lifelime sxpecled credit losses. As such, the
introdction of the IFRS 9 expected credil loss madal is not expacted io have a significant impact

Amendment 1o IFRS 15 Revenue from confracts wilh custormnaers IFRS15 specifies how and when an IFRS
reporter will recognise frevenue as wall as requiring such enlities to provide usses of financial stalements with
mare informative, nelevant disclosures. The Company hes made an assessment of its revenue from contracts
and has detarmined thal the amendment will have no impact on the Financial Statements of the Company,

Amendment to IFRIS1 Fist-lime Adoplion of intemanional Financiae! Reparting Sfandartds In the amendmean
the shom-emn exemptions in paragraphs E3-ET were deleted because lhey have served their intended
purpase. The amendment is expactad to have no impast on the Financial Statements of the Company.

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases IFRS 16 spacifies how an IFRS reporter will resognise, measuns, presan] and
disclose leases. The standard provides o single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recogrise
assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underying asset bas a
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low value. The Company has made &n assessment of its leases and has determined thet the amandment will
have no impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

There are no other IFRSs of IFRIC interpretatiens ihat are not yet affective that weuld be axpected to have a
maierial impact on the Compary.

Segmental roporting

The single operating segment |s reported in a manner constatent with the indemal reporting provided o the
chiaf operaling odecision-maker. The chiel operating deciion-maker, who |s responsible for alocating
resources and assessing pefformance of the operating segments, has been ientified as the Board of
Management that makes stralegic decisons

Foreign currency
Transactions and balances

The Financial Statemants are presented in Eurs, which is he Company's functional currency.

Foreign curmency transactions ane transialed inte the functional currancy wsing the exchange rates prevaing
&t the dates of the transactions, Fomeign exchange gains and losses resulling from the settiement of such
fransactions and from the franslaton ai year-end exchange rates of monelary assels and lisbilities
denominated in fofeign currencies are recognised in the income statement. in 'Mel losses on femandal
instruments'

Changes in the falr value of monetary securities denominated in foroign cumency classified as available-far-
sale are enalysad Detwesn franslation differences resating from changes in the amodised cost of the sacurily,
and ather fair value changes in the carying amount of the securlly, Translation diffierences are recognised in
the income staloment, snd other fair value changes in the carying amount are recognised In other
comprehensve incomie.

Transiation giferencas on nan-monetary financial #ssels and kabiliies are reportad as part of the falr valug
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-manelary finarclal assets and liabilities such as squlty securities
held at fair vabue theough profil or loss are recognised in the income statsmeant, in "Net losses on financal
instruments’. Translation differencas on nan-menetary financial assels such as equity securities classified as
avalable-lor-sale ama included in the fasr value resanve in squity,

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following categedes: loans ond rocelables  available-for-sals
mvesiments, held to maturity financial asssts or fnancial asseis al falr value thiough profit or loss, The
classification depends on the purpose fer which the financlal essets were acquired. Managemen detarmines
the cassification of the invesiments at initial recagnition, Regular-way rades of dervalives contracts are
accounted for on & irade date basis, and regular.way trades of all olher financiel assets are accounted for an
a sefllement date basis. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial azse! or pan of & group of
simiar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when the fights to receive cash fiows from the assets has
axpined,

aj Loans and recalvabias

The Company's fcans o Tayela group refated enlities are classiied a3 loans and recaivables. Loans and
receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fived or determinable payments that ane not quoted inan
active market, whoss recoverability i based solely on the credit risk of the related company and where tha
Company has no intention of trading the loan. Loans and recenvables are Initially recognised ai fair vaiue
including any incremental funding costs. Subsequent recognition is &1 amanised cost using the effective
intarasl methed, Guarantee fees receivable from fellow subsidiaries in respect of debl guarantecd by 1ha
Cormpany ane inciuded in ‘Other recolvables’ in the Statement of financial position.

bl Awvailable-for-sale finencial sssets

Avallable-for-sale financial ossels are non-dervative financial assels, principally {bwl not exchesively)
Invesiment securiies intended lo be held for an indefinite period of tima which mey be 308 in response fo
needs for Bquidity er changes in interest rates or market prices. Therelore, based on the expectation af
menagemeant, availabie-for-sale invesiments are classifed between cuffant and non-cument. They are initialy
maasured ot falr value including direct and incremental transaction costs, Subssguent measuremant Is &t fair
value, with changes in fair value being recegnised in oquity except far impairment losses and translation
differences. which are recognised in the Statement of cemprahansive incoma. Upen da-recognition of the
assat, or where there |s objective evidence that the invesimant securily i impsired, the cumulative gaing and
inases recognised |n equity ane removed from equity end recognised in the Statement of comprahensive
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c)  Held to malunty financal assets

Held 1o maturity financial assets are non-dervative financlal assels with fixed or determinable paymenis that
the Company has the ability and intention to hold to maturity. They ang initialty measurad at fair velue Including
direct and incremental ansaction casts. Subsaquent measurement is at amortised cost using tha effective
interest melhod. As of 31 March 2018 thare were no held to matuwity fnancial assets

d)  Financial assels at falr value thiough prof or loss

Financisl assets at fair value through profit or loss ane financial assets held for frading. Denvatives ame
ised as held for rading’ unless they are designated as hedging instruments, The Company enters into
derivatives to mitigale 1he rsks associated with other underlying financial essets and financial liabilities.

Derhvatives are inttially recognised a1 fair value on the dats & derivalive coniract i enterad inta and aro
subsequently adjusted at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed i the Stalemanl of comprehensive
income. The method of recognising the resuliing gain or loss depends on whether the darivative is designated
85 @ hedging nstrument. and if a0, the nature of the item being hedged. Consegquently, &l changes in the fair
vaiue of any derivative instruments, net of accrued interest on derivatives, are recognised immediataly in the
Statement of comprehensive income, within 'Met losses on financial inslruments’. Accrued interest on
derivatives is recordad in the income stalement within “Inteses! expanse”,

Impairment of financial assots

A financial assel or portfelio of financial assats, is Impalred, and an impaimment loss incurred, i (hene is
objeclive evidence that an event or events since Initial recognition of the asset has or have adversely afecled
the amount or timing of fulure cash fiows from the assel The Company assesses financial assets for
impairment at each reporing date. Evidence of impairment would Include a debi issuer being unable 1o pay
as and when the debd falls due,

The Company measuras the amount of the kss as the diflerence between the carying amount of the assat
or group of assels and the prasent value of estimated fulure cash flows from tha sssel or group of assels
digeaunted at the effective interast rate of the instrument at Inftial recognitien,

Impalfmianl Isses are assessed individually for financial assets ihat are individually significant and individually
or collectively for assets that are not individually significant, In making a coective assessment of imgalmment,
financial assats ane grouped info portiolios on the basis of similar risk characteristics. Future cash Nlows from
these portfolios are estimated on the basis of the contraciusl cash Nows and histoncal koss axperiance for
assets with similar credi risk characlerislics. Histoncal loss experience is adjusted, on the basis of curent
observable data, to refest the efects of curment conditions not affecting the pariod of hstosical expenience

Impairment losses are recognsad in profit or loss and the camying amount of the financial asset or group of
financial assels reduced by eatablishing an sllowance for impairment losses.

Ifin a subsequent peried the amount of the impairment loes reduces and the reduction can be descrbed 1o an
eveni after the impaimment was recognised, the previously recognised loss |s reversed by adjusting the
allowance. Onca an impairment loss has been recognised on a financial assst or growp of finenclal assets,
interest income is recognised on the carrying amount using the effective inferest rate al which estmated fulure
cash flows ware discounted in measuring Impalrmeant.

Financial investments are held al falr vadue with unreslised gains and losses recognised directly In other
cormprehensive income, net of applicable taxes. When financial ivestimenis are sold, collecied or impaimd,
the cumulative gain or loss recogresed in ofher comprehensive income is transferred to 'Other income’ in the
incoma statement. Interest-bearing securties and equilies classified as available-for-sale invesiments are
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether they are impaired, For equitins, this review considers
factors such as the credil standing and prospects of the issuer, any deduction in fair value below cost, ils
direction and whethes the reduction is significant or prolongad. in general, triggers used for a significant of
prolonged decling in the fair value balow cost are 20% and 8 months respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Items of propery, plani and equipmeni are caried at cost less any sccumulaled depreciation and any
accumulaled impairmen lxsses.

Daopreciation is charged to profi or loss on a straight-line basis so as to wrile off the depreciable amount of
property, plant and equipmant oves the estimated wsaful life of the assets as follows:

a Fixiure & Fittings: 5 years
a Furniture: S years
o Computer hardwara: 5 years

The sesats’ residual values and usahul lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriale, al each ra&\ef&g date.
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Gains and losses on disposal of Hems of propeity, plant and equioment are datermined by comparing proceeds
with the camying amoun!, These ang included in “Administration sxpensas’ in the Stalement of comprehensive
income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquined by the Company are stated a1 cost less accumulatod amadisafion and eny
accumulated impairmant losses.

Amortisabion ks charged lo prefit of loss of & siraighl-ine basls over the asset's estimated uselul life and is
included in ‘Admintstration expenses’ in the Statement of comprehensive income,

The estimated uselul economic fves are as follows:

[~ Compaer software: 5 years

The assets” values and useful lives are reviewsd, and adjusied  approgriate, at each reporing dale.

Gains and losses on disposal of ilems of inlangible assets are determined by comparning oceeds with the
carrying amount, These ane included in 'Administration expenses’ in ihe Statement of compeehensive incoms.

Impairmant of non-financial assats

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carmying amount of an assel oxcesds its recoverables amount.,

At mach reporting date the Company assasses whather thore is any indication that an asast may be impaired,
If airy such indieation exisls, the recoverable ameount of tha assel 8 estimated.

Property. plant, equipment as wall as intangible a5sets are subject to an mpalrment feview i thare are evants
ar changes in circumstance which Indicate thal the carrying amount may not be recoverable,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and deposits which can be realised within ihree months, These
inchede overnight money market depesits with banks, cumen! sccount and depesd account balances with
banks and shorl-term investments,

Cash and cash equivalen|s are measured al amorised cost

The cash fiow sialemenl has been drawn up in accordance with the indirect method, making a disfinclion
betwsen cash flows from operating, inwestment and financing aclivities. Cash fows relaied o Interest
paymanis, recaipts and tax payments are classified as cash fiows from operating activites.

Berrawings

Bomowinga are recognised initially ol fair value, nel of transaction cosis incurred and subsequently at
amorlised cost. Recognition and da-recognition is on a salllamaent basis,

Depanding on the maturity date af the coriract the borrowing is classified a5 cieren or non-cument.

Taxation

The charnge for current tax is based on the resuts for the period as adjusted for items that are not taxabla or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rales that have been anacied or substantvaly enactsd by the reporting
diate.

Deferred income ta fs provided in full, using Ihe belance sheel Babifty method, on temporary differences
anising between the tax bazes of assets and abiities and thair carrying amounts in the Financial Statemants.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it anses fram initlal recogniien of an asset or liability
in & ransaction olher than a business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects nelther accounting,
nor tanable profit or loss,

Defered income tax is determined wsing tax retes (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the retaled defarred incoma tex asssd is realisad or the
deferred income tex liablty |s setled

Defermed income lax assels ae recognised to the extent fha it is probable that futwne taxable profit will be
available ageinst which the lemporary differences can be utiised.

Ceferred income tax assels and Babfities are offset whan thare is a legally enforceabla rfight to offset currant

tax assels against currant tax lisbllies and when the defered income lax assels and liablliies relate te income

taxes levied by the same laxation autharity on e@iher the same 1axabie enfity or diftenent taxable antilios whene

there is an intertion to setlle the balances an a net basis Coe,
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Guaranices

Tha Company lssues guarantess to dabt holders of fellow Toyola Motar Corporaion subsidiaries. Tha
Company recelves guarantee fees from these feliow subsidianes in respact of the guaranieed debt in issuance.
Guarantess are classifed as financial liabiliies under 14539, and as such the guaranizes ane recognised in
the Slatement of financial position.

The guaranises are initially stated at fedr value, which Is detarmined by reference to the present value of the
future fee cash flows al the polnt of issuance of the debl being guaraniead, Guarantees are derecognised at
tha point of repayment of the guarantead debt.

Subsequent measurement of the guaraniee liablity is the higher of the amounl delermined by WAS 37
“Prowvislons, conlingant liebilities and conlingent essets” or the amodised initlal prasent value recognition of
{he guaranes Ligng the afactive intenest rale method.

Revenue recognition

Intarest income

Interest income is recognised waing the effective intarest method, VWhen a recaivabie is impared, the Company
reduces the carmying amaunt 1o s recoverable amount, beang the estimated futune cash flow discounted al the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and subsequently coninues unwinding the discount as interesl
Income,

The effective interest rate method calcuiates the amortised cost of 8 financial assel or liabiny, and aliecates

tha interest income or imterest expense over the relovant pered. The effeclive interest mle is the rate that
discourds estimated fulure cash recalpts and payments through the expected fife of the financial

instrurmant of, whish appropriate, a shorber penod 1o the net carmying amount of the fnancial asse! or lability,

When calculaling the effective interes! rate, the Company eslimales cash flows considedng all contrachual
terms of the financial instrument bul does not consider fulure credil losaas.

The casculation includes all amounts received of paid by the Compary thal are an integral pan of the overall
relum, direct incremantal iransaction costs ralated to the acquisifion or issum of a financial instrument, and all
cther premiums and discounts.

Iinberest on derfvatives and the amonisation of the inlerest component of foreign exchenge darivatives are
necagnised on an effactive yield basis within inforest expense in the Statement of comprehensive incoma.

Guaraniee fes Income

Gusrantes {sa incoma is recognisad during tha Be of the guaranies on an accruals basis in accordance with
{ha substance of the relavant agreamenis.

Dividend Incoma

Dividand income is recognisad whan the right to recaive payment ks established.

Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

The notes to the Financial Siatemants sot oul araas where significant judgement, complex calculations o
assumptions have been used fo @rrive &t the Financial Statements presanted. Areas of significant judgemant
ar complexdly will inciude the fair valuation of financial Instruments, loans and guarantees.

Fair value estimation of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instrumaents tha? ame Aol iraded in an active market s determéngd by using valuation
technigues. The Company uses a variely of methods and markel assumplions that are based on market
canditions existing a1 each reporting date. Quoted market prces or depler quoles for similar mstruments ane
used for long-termn debt. Other lachnigues, such &8 eslimaled discounted cash flows, are used fo delarming
the fair valse for the remaining financial matruments. The tair value of inlerest rate swAps, CIoSs clrency
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts is calculalad as the present value of the estimated future cash
ferwa.

The nominal value less impairment provision of other receivables and payables, normally maburing within 30
days, ane assumad io approgimate hes fair values. The fair value of financial Rabidilies for disclosure purposes
is estimaled by discounting the future contraciual cash Aows al the cument maikel inleoest rale thal is available
1o the Companly for similer financlal instruments, CE
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3.2 Initial recognition and valuation of guarantees

The inital fair value recognition of guarantee labilites, & relation 1o related party debt issuance, is required by
1AS 39, As the guarantees of related pary debt are not aclively iraded and no initial fee s charged for antering
into the guarantes, a valeation technique s required in assess the initial liability to the third-party deb! holder

The Company uses the discounled fulsre income cash Nlows over the life of the guaraniee to assess the intial
guarantes Rability. The initial mcegnition of the gueraniea Eabifity Is calculated using the markel Interes! rates
applicable bo the spacific currency of debl ssuance on the date the related party issues the debl

The estimation of the inilial fair value of the guamanieses is subjeci to a significant level of management
judgement and complesity, as the individual relaled group compantes do not have a separate credil rating
from thal of the averall Toyata Motor Corporation graup. A guaranies assel is recognized of an amount equal
fo the gueeranise Rabisly, Changes in the value of the guaranies liability are matched by equal changes In the
value of the guarantee assel; since such changes have no impact on the Stalement of comprehensive income,
no sensitivity analysis of the guarantea liability is included in the notes to tha Financial Statemants.

4.  Breakdown by geographical market
The Company consists of a single aperating reporing segment a8 defined under IFRS 8. Income generation
Is principally from landing to related companies, with other income generation from guarantees of related
companies and from olher investment and deposil income incadenlal 1o the primary Tunding aclivilies.
Income can be categorised geographically as follows:

Income by area 2018 2017
€000 £'000

Russia (group) 22478 26472
UK {group} 21,245 22435
Norway (group) 9,853 8,314
Thailand {group) £690 5,112
South Africa (group) 7517 6,853
Poland (group) 3235 2,7
Other countries {group) B.782 10,910
Interest received from omass 1,657 1.441
Total B3 46T 84,408

5 Interest income

Interest income 2018 2017
€000 €000

Interes! income on laans lo related companies: 78,865 B0, 364
Interest income on deposits 388 2
Interast (premium} income on commercial peper BTD Ba2
Interest income on collateral deposits pald n 576
Inferest income on corporate tax ar -
Total 80,332 81,804
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6. Guarantes fee incomo
The Company guaraniees 1he debl of cartan olher Toyola Molor Corporation subsidiaries far which || recaives
guarantee fes nocome. All guarantes fes income i from related parfies. Guarantas fes incoma for the year
2018 was € 3,135,000 (2017: € 2,604,000)

T. Interest expenses

Interest expenses 2018 2017

€000 €000
Interest charge on Eure mediem larm notes [94,875) {114,315)
Interest expense from bank borrowing (21,523) (15,318)
Interest exponse on commedcial paper (19.101) [%.607)
Interest paid on loan assets (1.221) (543}
Intereat axpensa én laans from relaled companies {1.216) {3.065)
Imerest axponse on collateral deposits racaived (283) (248)
Intnrest on bank averdral - 1
Inferest component of foraign exchange desivative contracts 3,010 1,473
MNet interest on swap agresments 81,806 T4, 134
Total 55,113} (B2,483)

Fee expensas

The Company has the benefil of credit suppor agreements with Toyola Financial Services Cerporation and
Toysla Moter Corporation, far which It pays credit support fees based on the Company's debt issuance and
guarantess issued to related parties. The credit support fees charged in the year by related parties were

€ 9,098 000 (2017: € 7.524,000).

Administration exponses

Administration expensas 2048 2017
€000 €000
Siaff costs {1.241) {1,428)
Legal faes (721} (7186)
Related party costs (878} {740)
Committed facilities {B15) (418]
Independent suditor's expenses {379) (307)
Communication expanses {1650 {149)
Cffica rent {108} (110}
Rating annual fees (87} A1)
Tax advisor feas (21) 23
Other adminsstration axpansas {591} (575)
Depreciation of PPE -
Total {4,611} (4,562)

The Compsny had an sverage of 10 employess, 2 seconded and 8 local (2017 8 empleyess, 2 seconded and
T local) during the year.
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Sialf costs consist of the following expenses and include the payroll costs of seconded employees:

Staff costs 2018 2017

€'000 €000
Wages, salades and bonuses (on accruals basis) (1.121) {1,341)
Socal security costs (74) {57)
FPension premiums (defined pension scheme on accruats basis) (45} (40
Total (1,241) {1,438)

Remuneration of key management below consist of all payments and benafils to directors of the Company.

Compensation to key management 2048 2047

€000 €'000
Shart-iarm employee benafits (271} (#402)
Tatal (ZT1) (402}

10. Mot gains (lossos) on financial Inetruments

Mat gains and losses arise from both foraign exchange rate movements and from interast rate movements on
the following calegories of financial instruments:

Net gains (lossas) on financial instrumants 2018 2017
€'000 €000

{Losses) | gains arising from foreign exchange rate

movements

Derivative instruments (548, 838) 325,738

Loans and rocedvables al amorlised cost (240,582) {24 608)

Financial liabilites measured 8 amonized cost TOB,152 {301 178)
{2E) {44)

[Losses) | gains arising from [nterest rate movements

Fair value losses on darvative nsirumants (25 441) (13.648)

Total (25, 708) (13,652)

The Compary issues debl jo third parties and loans {o related parties in @ number of currencies, and then
swaps this barrowing and lending back into ona of fowr funding books: US Dollar (USD). Pound Staring (GBP),
Japanese Yen (JPY) and Euro (EUR).

The effect of foreign exchange rale movemnentis on the markel value of the derivatives is offset by equal and
opposile exchanga lossas or gains on the underying irancial assels and labiliies. The nel gains and losses

arising from foreign axchange rale movemeanis arse from the Company's net forelgn exposure o GBP, USD
and olhar currencies.

The Company measures demvatives af fair value whereas the other financial assets and labilities ane
measurad al amortised cost The Company does not apply hedge accounting. Theralore, the aﬂ'allnflﬂemﬂl
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12,

13

movemeants an the markel valee of the dervalives is nat offsel by an opposite movement on the underlying
financial assats and liabiities leading 1o volatlity in the Statement of comprehensive income.

The increase In losses an dedvativas, from € 13,682 000 for the year ending March 2017 to € 25,709,000 loss
for the year ending March 2018, was caused by (i) the increase in interest rates for the funding currencies,

and {i)) the revarsal of previous gains for derivatives coming 1o maturity during the period.

Dividend income

The Company recalved a dividend from Toyola Leasing (Thalland} Co. Lig. of € 48,000 in the year (2017:

€ £5,000).

Independent auditor's expenses

Administration expenses include the folliowing fees paid 1o the Company's independent auditers EY, for 2018,

and Deloitte, for 2017, for the stabuiory audit:

Independent auditor's axpensas 2048 2017

€000 €000
Audit (statuory) — EY (145) E
Audit (staksdory) - Delolte Netherlands {15) (13m
Cithar audit serdoes = Delotte Luxembdng (18} [45)
Audit - other assurance services — PricewalerhouseCoopers (74} (a0
Audit - other asaurance services — Deboitte Metherlands (53) {52)
Audit - olher assurance senvices - EY (T4} B
Total {379) {307)

Other assurance senvices consist of fees paid 1o PricewaterhouseCoopers, EY and Deloitte for Combort Letters
relaling 1o he lssung of Euro madium term notes. Also included under other assurance services are fees paid
to PricewnterhouseCoopers Aarata (Japan) for ransistion services provided in transiating the Comiar Latters

and accompanying decumants,

Taxation
Taxation 2018 2M7
€000 €'000
Curmant
Tawation on profil (loss) for the year {4,557) (3,287}
Prior parod tax adjustment 548 885
(4,008) 2,602}
Defarrad
Crigination J reversal of liming differences 8,351 3,412
Total 2,352 810

The tax on the Company's kss before tax differs from the theonetical amounds that would arise using the

welighled average tax rale applicable to tho result of the Company a8 follows:

SlErnsTa YounG
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Reconciiiation of tax charga 2018 2017

£'000 £'000
Resull before tax {11.815) [3.514)
Averags pplcable tax rate for the year 24.83% 24.80%
Tax calcutased af domestic tax rales applicable 2,945 850
Change In tax rales on defered tax balancas 18 14
Imecoverable withholding tax {1,170) (B45)
Taxable cxpense 1) U]
Non-taxabie income 11 11
Frios paried tax adjustmaent 548 843
Taotal 2,352 B10

The cumen tax rale s 25% for calendar year 2018 (2017: 25%) in the Netherands.

14,  Loans to related companies

The Company lands to other Toyola Motor Corporation subsidiarias on both a fixed rate and & floabng rate
basis. All fixed rale londing (with tonors longes than i manths) & swapped into threa month fleating basis in
lin@ with the Company’s risk managamani palicy.

Thi currency of related party landing is determined by counterparty demand and then either funded directly
fram one af four main funding books (USD, GBP, JPY and EUR) or swapped back Into the appropriate funding
currency using a malching cumency swap.

Loans to related companias 2018 2097

€000 €000
Current Inans o related companios 3,750,837 3470478
INof-current lsans to related companies 4,890,433 3,847 488
Tatal 741,070 T.317 965

No related party loans sre overdus and Ihene is no impatment of relaled party loans edther in the current o
previous financial years. There has been no renegotiation of any loans thal would otherwise have been pasl
dug of impaired,

Inieresi rates on group lending can be eithes fixed or Boating, Thi intefest range lof groug landing on 31 March
2018 was between (0. B05)% and 12 55% per annum, depanding on the currency of the loan.

Mo impairmant pravisians or losses have been incurred in the curren] or previous financial year for any class
of financial assels

Available-far-sale Investmont - related company

The Company owns 0.047% (2017: 0.047%) of the (ssued share capital of Toyola Leasing (Thailand) Cao, Lid,
(TLT), a company domicled in Thailand. TLT has issued shase capital of 51.4 million shares (face value
1,000 Thai Bahi (THB) per share). Of the registered share capilal of THEB 51.400,000,000, THB
15,100,000,000 = fully paid up, The ariginal cost of the investment in 1587 was € 750,000

Management has assessed the fair value of the Investment in TLT wilh reference io discounied cash flow
modeling of TLT assats and Sabifties, and by applying the current marset inferest rates and exchange rates
prevaing on 31 March 2018, The invesiment in TLT shares at (he reporting date & measured at fair value,
The valuation of TLT, alihough using third-parly markei data. is subject o managemant pdgement when
assassing the prosabie cash flows from the current asset base o
FORIDESTIFLA IO 19
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Investment in Toyota Leasing (Thalland) Co. Lid. 2018 M7

€000 €°000
Balance al the stast of year 1115 ]
Fair value adjustmant 4 167
Total 1,118 1,118

16.  Darivative financial instruments

The cervalive financial instruments are categoarised as held for trading and ane carried at fair vatee through
profit or loss. The fair values of derivalive contracts are shown in the tabla below. Additonal disclosures are
sel oul in the accounting policies relating o risk managemeant,

Derivative financial instruments 18 2017
Current assets €000 €000
Inlerest swaps 129 198
Cross-cumency Swaps 53,420 153,952
Forward forelgn currency coniracis 4212 B.840
Total current assots 57,761 162,990

Derivative financial instrumeants
Non-current assets

Interest swaps 1,755 1,575
Cross-cumency swaps 145,480 365129
Total non-current assoets 148,235 366,704

Derivative financial instrumants
Total assets. 205,956 525,654

LR
TOH IDENTIFICATION

I Brmist £ Y00NG
ACTOIUINTANTS

20

104/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.YV

17

Derivative financial instruments 2018 017
Currant liabilities €000 €000
InErest swaps 1821 1.408
Gross-cumency swaps B9 ATT 123,402
Ferward foreign curmency confracts a5 480
Total current labllities. 891,263 125,301
Derivative financial instruments

HWon-current liabilites

Inlerast swaps 3,437 4,143
CIOSs-CUMBNCY SWEPS 253,640 76,230
Tatal non-current Habilites 257077 78,382

Derivative financial instruments
Tolal labllities 348,340 204 683

Dedvalive assets and Eabilties are recognised ol kar value thisugh the Incoma stalemant

In accordance with 1AS 38, “Financial instruments: Recogniion and measurement”, the Company has
reviewed all contracts for embedded dedvatives and found there are none. Dervative assels and liabilties ae
recognised at fair value through the income statement. The majority of derivative contracts have collateral
agreemants attached. Tharefore, the debit'credit valuation adjustmant is not considerad material and is not
considened in dalermining the Gir ealue of denvatve asaels and abdtes.

Property, plant and equipment

Proparty, plant and equipment 2018 2017
Computer hardware Computer
and office hardware and
equipmaent office aquipmaent
€000 €000
Cast
Cost bifed at 1 April 2017 / 2016 a2 B2
Additions
Désposals -
Tatal 82 82
Depreclation
Depreciation b'fed 2t 1 April 2017 /2016 a2 D
Depreciation charge for the year 7
Disposals . -
Total a2 B2
Reconciliation at the beginning and end of the
year
Cpaning net baok amount - at 1 April 2017 2016 - T

Closing net book amount - at 31 March 20187 2017 - =

ET
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18. Intangible assels

Intanglble assets 2018 2017
Computar Computer
software software
€000 €000
Coast
Coat bifwd at 1 April 2017 ¢ 2016 ] a9
Disposals - =
Total L] )
Amartisation
Amaortisation bifwd at 1 Apsil 2017 F 2018 f f
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals
Total 9 )

Recenciliation at the beginning and end of the year
Dpening ned book amount - 81 1 April 2017 / 2016 - -

Closing net book amount - at 31 March 2018/ 2017

19. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in kil on lamporary differences wnder the balance sheet lisbillty method, using ihe
current tax rale of 25.0%. The tax rales apply to calendar years.

The mowemant on the defamed {ax accound s shown balow

Deferred tax 018 2017

€000 €000
Deferred tax bhwd 1 April 2017 / 2018 4,711 {8,123)
Fair valuation of assets and Eabilties through profit or loss 6,361 3412
Total 1,650 (4.711)

Dafarrad tax assots have boen recognised for all 1ax galns and other temparary diffierences giving rise to
dedarred iax assets, becewsa i is possible that these assats will crystallisa

20, Other recelvables

Other receivables 2018 2017
€000 €'000
Deposi for rented property gg gg
Frepaid rant
Collateral daposits paid 237,000 85,900
Inferes! receivable (cash collateral posted) ] 83
Othar recebvabla - 10
Related party receivables 1.787 1355
MNon-redated party receivablas a2 3
Financial guarantes receivable 7431 5332
Taotal 246,327 102,764
CRY 2
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2.

.

23,

Collatersd depos’ts paid are cash depoeis with derivative counterparties hald as collateral in respect of
aderivative contracts. The fair vaiue of those deposits approximates the camying amounl

Current taxes

Current laxes are charged based on the prevalling tax rates, The lax rates apply to calendar years and profit
for the accounting year is therefore pro-rated between the two calendar years on a day-count basis lo compute
the aflacihve tax rata. Tha current tex rate s 25.0% for calendar year 2018 (2017: 25.0%) in the Netherdands.
Corporation tax asssl al 31 March 2018 is € 0 (2017: € B8,000]. Corpaoration 12w liability at 31 March 2018 is
€ 1,209,000 (2017: € 0). The tax payments ane made during the year in which the prafls ane camed on an
astimated basis. The extent o which the final taxable charge dfffers from the original estiimated amount resuits
In & currend tax aseat or Eabéity due lo over or undar paymen] of tax rspectively,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 2018 2017
€000 €'000
Cash and bank balances 4 568 1872
Deposits 122,068 -
Overdraft {1 -
Tatal 126,633 1872
As of 31 March 2018 there are no restrictions on cash and cash equivalants.
Borrowings
Borrowlngs 2018 2018 2047 2017
Current Hon- Current Non-
current current
€000 €000 €000 €000
Commarcial papar 2,453,047 - 1,504,171 -
Medium term noles 1,181 566 3,754,165 1,443,137 2,689,716
Loans payable group company - - 352,597 -
Loans payable bank 200,835 1,168,267 270,261 B4i0,859
Total 3,816,443 4,820,482 3,600,188 3,610,575
Borrowings by currency iMa 018 2T 20T
Current Non- Current Mon-
currant currant
€000 €000 €000 €000
Pound Sleding 1,601,870 404,753 1,736,854 -
United Siates Dollar 1,409 026 2,345,708 800,758 1,802,605
Auetralian Dollar 102,735 1,188,538 400,182 1,009,670
Mew Zealand Doltar 236 744 375,689 173,170 048,300
QOther 396,213 605,766 290,161 -
Tatal 3,836 448 A4920,462 3,600,168 3,610,578
e
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Borrowings 01 Apr. 17 =31 Mar, 18 01 Apr. 16 - 31 Mar. 17
€000 €'000
Commoarcial paper
Start 1,504 171 956,312
Acerued inlorest 612 2
Issue 22 450,829 17,830,019
Redemption {21,457 527) (17,142 200)
Amortisation 833 (483)
FX revaisalion {44,871) 60,621
Toital 2,453,847 1,604,171
Mediem term notes
Starl 4,112 853 3476704
Accrued inberest (7.016) 578
I5sUn 2512 805 831,359
Redamption {1,467.358) (455,891)
Amonizathan 13,688 10,147
FX revaluation (328, 112) 250,564
Total 4,835,734 4,112,853
Borrowings 01 Apr. 17 — 31 Mar. 18 01 Apr. 18 - 31 Mar, 17
000 €000
Loans from related companies
Starl 342 507 544 710
Aceruad intorest {510} (1849)
Is5ue - 928 757
Redemptian (360,561} [1,110,341)
FX revabuation (1,508) 21,870
Total 1] 82567
Loans bank
Slarl 1,211,120 1,133.814
Accrued Intenest 658 ar4
[T 553,000 280,843
Redemplion {207 . 348) (256,002)
Amaortisation 413 429
FX ravaluation {180, 710) 50,882
Total 1,387,232 1,211,120

The Company’s principal bomowings are from short-tarm commereial paper programmes, a medium lerm nate
programme and long-lerm bank borowing. Commencial paper is a short-larm debt instrument normally issued
at a discount and repaid at face value. The Company can issue commarsal papar with maturilies between 1
doy and 384 days. Interest retes bank borrowings are fieating and Based on the relevant three manths Libar
plus spraad. The inlarest range bank borrowings on 31 March 2018 was between 0.25% and 2.225 % per
anmum E_‘E_
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A at the 31 March 2018 thene are currant borrowings of € 3,838,448,000 (2017 € 3,600, 186,000) and nan-
current borrowings of € 4 520 462 000 (201 7- € 3,610 575,000).

24, Financial guarantos liability

The curren) value of guaraniees outsianding ks: € 7 431,000 (2017: € 5,332,000) and these relale only 1o
guaraniess issued in respect of debl issuance for other related group companies (see nobe 2),

25.  Other llabliitdes and accrued expenses

Othar liabilities and mﬂﬂdw

Collalaral doposits received

Interest payable on collateral deposits
Fetated parly accounts payable
Accrued administration openses
Cther accrued taxes

Cither liabilities

Total

2018 207
€000 €000
56,600 367,600
44 18
5525 4,243
90 %]
138 121

1 1
B2,B00 372,667

Collateral deposils neceived are cash deposis from derivative counlerpariies held as collateral under

derivative conbracts.

26, Capilal managomont

7.

The Company's internal abjectives whan managing capitad arg:
a To safeguard the Company's ability to continue &5 a going concem, so thal it can continue o
prowide relums for shareholders and benefils for other stakeholders; and
To provide an adequate return 1o the Company’s primary shareholder, Toyola Financial Services
Corporation, by pricing products and services commansurabely with 1he bevel of risk,

Accounling equity is defined as the sum of |ssued share capital (see note 27).

During the financial year 2018 the Company’s capilal meanegament sirategy remained unchanged from tha
financial year 2017 and was lo operate profitably and fo add {o retained reserves

The Company has complied with infernal capdal requirements by maindaining adequate capilal during the year,

Share capital

Share capital

Authorised

10,600 (2017: 10,000) ardinary shanes of € 454 each

lssued and fully paid up
2,000 (2017: 2,000) ordinary shares of € 454 each

2018 2017
€'000 €000
4,540 4,540

808 904

100% of the share capital of the Company i cwned by Toyola Financial Services Comperation (see notel).
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Appropriation of Profit

The logs for the financial year 2017 was deducied from the relained samings as agreed in tha Annual
Ganaral Mealing of Shareholders held In Amsterdarm on 28 July 2017,

The Board of Management proposed that the loss for the past fnancal vear 2018 be deduciad frem the
relaned aamings.

Fair value reserve moverment

Falr value reserve €000
AL1 April 2018 183
Movemant

Unrealised gains on avadable-for-sale financal assats 167
AL 31 March 2017 380
Unrealised gains on avalable-for-sale financial assatls 4
Mat fair value reserve at 31 March 2018 364

The fair valuation reserve ases from the fair valuation through equity of avalfablie-for-saie Francial assats
and tha related defered laxation on the fair valuation adjusiment.

Related-party iransactions
Parent and ultimate controlling party

The Company 5 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyola Financial Senvices Corporation (TFSC), a company
incorporated in Japan, The ulimate management company and centrolling party is Toyota Motor Corporation
(TMC). a company incornparated in Jagan,

Transactions with parent company

During the year TFSC prowided credit suppon to the Company in respect of dabt issuance in the capital
markets and relaled party guaraniees. The fees charged were € 5,838 000 (2017: € 7,524,000) with

€ 5,345,000 {2017 € 4,019,000) outstanding a1 year-and. The outstanding amaunt Bears no interest and tha
payment berm is 30 days.

Fellow subsidiarias
During the year transactions were sntered into with the following TMC subsidiaries:
TTNI {formerly Toycta Dipital Cruise Eurape NVISA)
Tayala Financial Services (LK) PLC, as well as iis subsidiaries and associated undenakings

Toyola Financial Services (UK) PLC subsidiares:
Toyola Finance Finland Oy

Toyola Financial Services Czech s.r.o

Toyola Financial Services Slovakia s.r.o,

Toyola Financial Services Danmark AJS

Toyota Financial Services Hungary Ri

Toyota Financial Services (Ireland) DAC

Tayota Financial Services {UK) PLC associated undertakings: LM
Toyola Financial Services {South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited FOR IDEMTIFCATION
HEnsTeiouns
ACCDLNTANTS
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Toyata Kredibank GmbH, as wall as with its branchas and subsidiares:

Toyota Kradithank GmbH branches
Toyots France Finanoemant

Tayata Financial Services Nonway
Toyota Financial Services Sweden
Toyota Financial Services Spain
Toyota Kreddbark GmbH subskianes:
A0 Toyola Bank

Toyota Leasing GmbH

Teyota Bank Pelska 5.A.

Teyota Leasing Polska Sp.z oo,

Toyota Leasing (Thalland) Cao. Ltd
Teoyota Financial Services Korea Lid
Teyota Maolor Credil Corporation
Toynta Capital Malaysia Sdn. Bhd
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Guarantees

The Enmnar_ly samed € 3,135,000 (2017: € 2,604,000) from fellow subsidiaries as guaraniees fees. The
amount relating 1o the guarantes Tees that remained unpaid o year-end was € 1,787 000 (2017 € 1,355 000).
The ewtstanding amount bears no interest and has not been impairad.

Dividends

The Company received € 48,000 (2017; € 45,000) in dividends as disclosed in note 11 o0 its wnlisted
invesiment in Toyota Leasing (Thalland) Co, Lid

Borrowings
The movernant in the Company's borrewings from fallow subsidiaries during the year are shown below. Af 31

March 2018, there was no borrowings from related companies. Referance is made to note 23 for the lerms
and conditions of the borrowings.

Loans from related companies 218 207
€000 000
Balance at the beginning of the year 362,597 544,710
Loans recesved during the year - 928,757
Loans ropaid during the year (380,581) (1,110,341)
Intarest expense 1,216 3,085
Intares! paid (1,728 {3.7685)
Exchange revaluation of laans from related companies (1,508) 21,671
Total o 382 507
E M
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Lending
The summary of loans to feliow subsidiaries and the Income and expenses Incurred thereon during tha year
Is sl oul below;
Loans to related companies 2018 2097
€000 €000
Balance at the beginning of the yaar 7,217,666 6,291,307
Loans advanced during ihe year 7807, 789 6,338,359
Loans received (6, 448,863) {5,443, 456)
Intarest income 78,665 80,354
Interest recanmad (78.390) {81,293)
Inlerest expenss {1.221) (543}
Inlmrest paid 113 d441
Exchanga revaluation of lnans 1o related companies (37,887 132,817
Tatal 8,741,070 7,317,965

Mo impaémment has been recognised an the amounts culstanding at year-and (ses note 14).

Transactions with relaled companies are at arm's length pricas.
Directors
Theé wara no changes in the Board of Managemeant during the year.

Transactions with directors, management and employoes

Thera were no transactions, other than emaiuments, with direciors, management or employeas during the

year
Bummary of related party payables included in ether Habilities

Summary of related party payables Included In ather liabilites

Credit support fees payable lo parent companmy
Business and administration services payable to related companies

Total

Summary of guarantees and related party recelvables

Summary of guarantees and related party receivables

Related party recesvables for guaraniees

Taotal

Amoimnis receivable from ralated partes have not been mpatned,
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2018 2017
€000 €000
5,345 4018
1680 24
5,625 4,243
2018 20T
€000 €000
1,787 1.355
1,787 1,365
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Cantingent liabllities

The Company issues guaraniess fo dabt holders of other Toyels Moter Comaration subsidianiss. The
Company receives guaranles fees from Toyota Moter Corparation sutsidiaries in respect of the guaraniead
dabt in issuance,

The Company assesses the need for provisions by reviewing the net assals and peofitability of the companies
for the year ending 31 March 2018 The accounts of the respeciive debl issuers indicate thal there ara
adequale assnts to covar tha borawings,

No provisions have been required against contingant liabilities in elther the current or prior fiacal years.

Sat out below i the Euro equivalent of the guaraniees issued in refation to debl issuance by athar Teyola
Motor Corparation subsidiaries

Contingent liabilitios as at 31 March 2018 2017
Currency of debt guarantsad €000 €000
Malaysinn Ringgit 24,156 16,909
Russian Ruble 70,851 50,002
South Afncan Rand 424 115 338,528
Thai Baht 1,670,807 1,377,013
Tatal 2,190,129 1,782,623

The: raturo of the guarantees is that they are wiconditional guaramiees issued to 1he debt halders, 1If far any
reason the issuet is unable to pay as and when the debt falls due, the Company may be required to repay the
cebt on behall of the issuer. The guarantees are for commercial paper and medkum-term noles.

Financial risk managomont
Flnancial risk factors

The Company's princpal sctivities are the lending ef funds fo other subsidiaries af Toyota Financial Services
Cerporation (the paren! company) and acting as a guarantes vehice for thir party debls of other related
companies within the Toyota Motor Corporation group.

The Company's rale as a financing vehicle for Toyola relaled companies expases i bo @ varaty of Gnancial
risks thaf include credit risk, lguidity risk, intarost rate rsk and foreign currency exchange rate risk, The
Company has in place a risk managemeanl program that soeks 1o limil the adverse effects cn the Francial
perfommance of the Company of those risks by matching forelgn cufrency assets and liabilites and through the
use of financial instruments, induding inferest rate swaps, cross-curmency swaps and foreign currency
contracts, to manage inferest rate and forelgn currency risk.

In respect of the credit risk ansing from the market values of dervative esntracts io manage markel nisks,
agresments are condluded 1o exchange collateral with countampanies to mdigate those cradit risks. The Board
of Management utiises a risk managemenl poficy and recaives reguiar repodis fram the business to enable
prampt iderification of financial risks so that appropdale actions may be laken. The Company employs written
paolicies and procedunes that specify guldelines for managing foreign oxchange risk, inferest rabe risk, credit
risk and the use of financlal instruments o manage these rsks

Foreign exchange risk

The Company lends to related Toyola group comganies in Eurp, other santinental Europaan surréncies, South

African Rand, Pound Sterding and US Daollars. The Company actively bomows in @ number of curencles o

meel investor demand for its issued debt. The Company makes use of coss-curency swaps and forward

foreign exchange contracts to malch assels and Gabilities into specific cumency partialios, The net BNPOSUIE

[.j!;m In the Company baing exposed to foreign exchange risks pamarily with respect 1o Pound Steriing and
Dallars,

Tha Cormpany manages its exposure fo foreign exchange risk by enausing a1 its holdings of financial asseis
and financial katditles are malched within each of #s four funding currency portfolios, o enswne that any net
kong or shiot positions within sach currency fall within levels that management considers acceplabia,
The remaining net exposures at the reponing date wara as follsws: EKH
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Net exposure to fareign exchange risk 2018 2017

€000 £'000
Pound Sterling 1,355 3,858
Thai Bahd 1,338 1,029
Other 136 i
Total 2,820 4,912

The above axposure represents the present value of futune forssgn currency cash lows discoured al mankel
interes! rates at the repading date, The exposure derives from the net equity invesiment In the three main
Toreign currency funding books that the Company uses to provide funding to relaled pariies

The following sersitiity analysis shows the impact on equaty, through both profit of loss and recognition directly
in resenves, of 8 5% appreciation and depreciation in the value of the Euro against all other currencies at the

reporting date:
2018 2017
Sonsitivity of Sensit Total Saenaitivity of | Senms Tatal
Prafit and Loss of Eqﬁ Profit and Loss of m
GalniLoss) | GainVLoss) | GalnLoss) GalnijLoss) | Gain/Loss) | Gain/[Loss)
€000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
5% Euro
strengthaning {108} [18) (124) {184) (18} (202)
5% Euro
weakening 108 18 124 184 18 202

1.3 [Intereat rate risk

The Comgany has both inforesi-bearing assets and interest-bearing llabiities. The Company has a policy of
mainaining assets and liabilites at fioating inlerest rates. The Company USES Swips, in respect of financial
assets, Incuding inler-company lending io manage risk. |n respect of borrowing, swaps are used io retain
fiexibility in the debt capital markets. The interest rate swaps are setifed on 8 b-anqual or quartedty basis with
paymant or receipt of the difference babtween the agreed fixed inforost rate and tho fisating interest rato
armoinds on the poancipal

Interest rate risk in relation toihe Company's related pany lending ectivifies is managed by ensuring that any
foed rate lunding & swapped into Acating rato, with reset dates typically of a thres month duration.

This Interast rate profile broacly matches that of the Company's infra-group loan asssls, either camying
wariable coupons wilth a three month re-pricing or, where fixed for longer periods, swapped Into lhree moenth
finaling rales.
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Markel risk measuremont technigues - Interest rate Value at Risk (VaR)

The Company applies a "Valus al Risk’ methodoiogy (VaR) to estimate the marke! risk of poaitions held and
the masimum losses expecied, based upon & number of assumplions for varous chamges in marke!
conditions

Senior managemen! sate bmils on the value of dsk thal may be accepted, in Ene with Toyola group global
podicy, which afe then monsiored on a ragular basis by senior management via an Assal LabEy Commitiea
(ALGO).

WaR is a slalistically based cstimate of the potential loss on the cement portlalio from adverse market
movements. It exprasses the ‘maximum’ amount the Company might lose, but only 1o a cortain level of
confidence (#5%).

The Company's YaR measure is based on markat data over the preceding 12 manths,

Actual cutcormnes are menitored regulary 1o best the validity of the assumgplions and paramatersfacions ussd
In the VaR calculation, The use of this approach does not prevent kesses outside of these lmits in the even
of more significant markat movemanta.

Ag VaR constitutes an iMegral pait of the Company's markel Ask conlrol regime, VaR limits are reviewed by
the Beard of Management annually for ihe irading operations and buslness units,

Actual exposure against limits, 1agather with the VaR for sach business unit, is reviewed monthly by tha ALCO.

2018 2018 018 208

Yaar High Year Low Year Average 31 March

Closing

€000 €000 €000 €000

Interest rate VaR 4,022 733 1.913 733
2047 2017 2017 207

ear High Year Low Year Average 31 March

Closing

€000 €000 €000 €000

Interest rate VaR 4346 823 21m 1.923

While the table above details the Company's best estimate of the VaR al each repoding date, actual results
could differ from astmates, as & number of assumplions are used:
- Assumpbions are made regarding repayment rales for lpans and recelvables and projections of
future markaot intarest rate changes;
- The WaR model assurnes a cerain “holding pencd’ untl positions can be closad (1 month);
= [ also pssumes thal markat movemenis ocouming over this hodding period will fodlow @ similar
patiam 1o those that have ocourmed over 1 momh penicds in the past,
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

The Campany's inlerest rate nsk exposure derivas from (he Tallowing financial contracts:

Interest rate risk exposure at Fixied Floating Mon- Total
31 March 2018 rata rate Interest
bearing

£'000 €000 L] €000
Non-curront asssts =
Loans to related companies 2,852 214 2,338,118 4.590.433
Auailablo for sale iwestmen! '
= refated company - - 1,118 1,118
Current assots
Loans to related companies 1,520.220 2,230 41T = 3.7
Receables from affiliated il
COMPANIES ] - 1,787 1.787
Other recevablas
= financial instruments: only - 237,000 108 237,100
Cash and cash equivalents - 125,634 - 126,634

Current liabilitios

CP . (2.453.847) - {2,453, 947)

EMTH {385.560) {816,008) - {1,181,588)

Bank loans (56) (200,878) - (200,935

Loans from related companias . - - Z

Affliated company accounts payable - -

Other  listiition.  and acored B4 By

BAPENEES - 56, B a0

; e = [t } () (57,374}

Bank overdraft . {1 - (n

Nan-current lkabilities

EMTHN (2.470,418) {1.283,747) - (3,754, 185)

Bank loans {304 218) (B52,081) - {1, 166,267)

Pre-derivative positian () 1,032,284 741,135  (3.240) 287,908

Hominal value dervatives (b) (871,715} 820,448 {78 (142, 344)

Met intarest boaring aaseat / (lability)

postion {al+b) 60,568 BB,313 (3,318) 145,585

EXM
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Interest rate risk cxposure at Fixed Flzating Nan- Total
31 March 2017 rate rate intarost
bearing

£'000 €000 €000 €000
Non-current assats
Loans to related companias 1,764,538 2,082,850 3 3,847 488
Avallable for sale investmant
= ralated company - - 1,115 1115
Current asasts
Loans to related companies 1,374,523 2,005 955 - 3,470,478
Recaivables from afiiated
companies = . 1,355 1,355
Other receivables
= financial instruments only - 95,810 167 86,007
Cash and cash equivalants - 1,872 - 1,872
Current llabllites
CF (219,848) (1,284 223) - (1,504,171)
EMTM {1,001,178) (441,855) . (1,443,137)
Bank loans - {270,281) - (270,261)
Loans from related companies - (362 587) - (382.58T)
Affiliated company aceaunts
payabie 7 - {4,243) {4,243)
Other liabilities and accruad
BARONERS
- financial Instruments only - (367.619) {T05) (368,324)
Bank owandraft - E i =
Non-current llabilities
EMTH {2,462 252) {167 464) = (2,668, 716)
Bank loans - (240,859 - {840,858)
Pra-detivativa position () (564317) 01705 @231 (164923
MNominal value derivatives (b) 586,430 {241,105) {314) 2501
et imeras! bearing assot / (Jiability) 2113 160,600 {2,625) 180,083
pasfian (a)+h)

Shon-term borrowmng with an onginal term of less than 6 months is subject to regular ineres! rale changes

on replacement, therefore, short-lerm funding of this nature 13 classified as floating rate funding in the above
tables,

.4 Credit risk

Counter party exposure from investments, deposits and derivative financial investmenis is Bmiled to finandal
instibetiona with investment-grade credd ratings wilth more stingent rating thrashodts for exposures in excsss
of S yearg. The amount of exposure fo any individual countar-party ks subject 16 a limlt, which is rosssessed
annually.

The Comipany is exposed o credit risk from ils acthities as a lender and guaranter of Toyota Maotor Corporation
oparating compankas’ third pany debts in varous gesgraphical locations. While the Company’s primary credi
rigk exposurs is default by the related companies 1o which it lends or issues guaraniees o third parties, this
risk s mitigated by credit suppodt agreements with &s parant and ultimate parent company, Eiaéeﬁiu they have

LM LA i A s =
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

undertaken {o the debl and guaraniess holders 1o malntain the equity of the Company a1 a spacified level. The
Moody's credit rating of the parant as of 31 March 2018 is Aad,

In addition, the Company's lending and guarantee aclivity s io significant oparating entities as part of the
Toyola group, and therefors the Company's continuing (rading viabilty ks ulimately dependent upon the-trading
performance of the Toyots Mofor Corporation group ns o whole. Lending Is on an unesubordinated basis, but
thene are instances where loans are subordinated to assist in mesting regulatory funding requirements of the
borrower,

Derivalives onfared into by the Company exclusively to manage its inferest rate and curency risk ane traded
solely with recognised eredil instilubons with credil ralings as detalled above,

The Campany's cash and cash equivalents aie held with a sebection of tanks frem a list approvad by Toyota
Moter Corporation/Toyela Financisl Sarvices Corporation within speeaified limits

The maximurn exposure to credit rigk from financial instruments at the reporting date is s follows:

Crodit risk 2018 2017
€000 €'000

Current assets

Loans te related companies 3,750,837 3470478

Cihar raceivablas

— financial instrumants and

recenvables from affilialed companies 238806 ar 432

Darivative financial instrements 57,761 162,590

Cazh and cash equivalenis 126 834 1,872

Mon-curreni assets

Loasns fo related companias 4,880,433 3,847 480

Darivative firsnaial inslruments 148,235 383,704

Contingent liabllities
Guaranioes of related party debt 2,180,128 1,782,523

Agreements to exchange coliateral in cash have been concluded with counterpartios to mitigate the credit fsk
arising from the value of dervative finandcial instrumenis shown above. At 31 March 2018, the valus of cash
esllateral received, shown as Colisleral deposils received In nole 25 within Other Gabifties and accrued
axpanses was, € 56,600,000 (2017: €357 500,000).

Dedails of the Conlingent liabililies ane shown in note 30.

The maximum single exposurs from derhvalive assels al the noporting dale to a single counerparty is
€ 26,301,000 (201 7: € 137 029,000} and the 3 largast counderparty positions roprosent € 48,228 000
{2017 € 305.403,000). Thase counterpariies exposures am collatenised

.5 Liquidity risk

Uguidity risk Is the risk that the Company is unable to meet payment cbiigations associated with its financial
fabilities when they fall due,

Thie Company ragularly forecasts short and madium-tamm funding requirements incomorating information frem
cther related companies and ensures that there fs an appropriate level of liquid resources 1o cover any
unforeseen cash requirements,

The Company actvely maintains a mixture of bbag-term and shod-term dabt maturities, together with long-
term commitied faclities and liquid invesiments that are dasigned o engure the Company has sufficent
availabie funds for aperations. The Company maintaing cammitted cradit lines with a syndicate of esmmancial
banks to miligate the liquidity sk, In additon, the Company has entsred into & credd sugpart agraament and
@ supplemantal credit support agreemeant with ils parent company in which it will make sufficent funds availatie
to the Company <o that the Company will ba abla i3 service the obligations arising aul of s capital markat
barrowing and guarantee chligations respactivaly. i,
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B Y

The credit suppen agraement and the supplemental cradit suppor agreament provide for lermination by elther
party upon 30 days' written natice to the ather party. Such terminations will not take efiect until or unless all
relevani securities have been repaid or each relevan! rating agency has confirmed to the parent camparny ar
the Company that the cebi ratings of all relevant securites will ba unaffestad by such termination

The foilowing table detalls the expected maturity of non-dermative financial labilites, The analyzis is based an
gross contractual (undiscounted) cash fiows payabla. Fommign curmrency eash flews includad in the table belaw
have beon trangliated using marke! ratles. Wheie Rdure interest paymenls are variable, tha cash flows are
based on the inferast rate indax al the reparting date.

Dubt cash flews at Duie within Due Dhuse Dun after
i1 March 2018 3 montha between between 5 years
4 and 12 T1and §
maonths YRars

€000 €000 €000 €000
Related party barrowings - - . =
Bank bomowings T.838 224 038 1,216,810 -
Commercial paper 1,739,811 714 858 . -
EMTHN 333,298 1,101,876 3,828 449 -
Coltateral deposits recaived sEe0n - L
Total 2,137 542 2,041,768 B,045,259 -
Debt cash flows at Due within Dua Due Due after
M March 2017 3 months betwean betwean 5 years

4 and 12 1and5
months years

€000 E€'000 €000 €000
Ralated party borrowings 180, BT 203,040 . -
Bank barrowings 4,500 282 327 076,608 -
Commercial paper 514,742 991,138 = -
EMTH 570,375 945,767 2827521 -
Collateral deposits received 387 800 =ip . =
Tatal 1,628,114 2422281 3,804,219 -

The foliowing table details the axpected maturity of derivative finandial Instruments. The analysis is based on
the gross contractual fungiscountad) cash flows. When the amount payalle or recelivable is nol fxed, the
amaunt disclosed hag been determined by reference to current market indices &t the reporting date.
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Net cash flows at
31 March 2018

Met satiad:
~ Interest dodvatives payable |
{recaivabla)

Gross sotiled:
— Currency desvalives — recehvable
= Currency derivalives — payabla

Total derdvalive cash Nows

Total

Net cash flows at
3 March 2017

Het softlod:
~ Inierest dervatlives payable |
{receivabig)

Gioss sattled:
= Curmincy darivatives — racaivable
= Curmancy derivatives - payable

Tolal derivative cash flows

Tatal

EDINETOOOO
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Due within Due Due Dua after
3 months between between 5 years
dand{2 1and 5
maonths Yyears
€'000 €000 €000 £'000
2 2,770 BATE
{1,208,138) {1,897.874) {6,156, 124)
1218076 1,930,083 8,115,254 — .
9839 (B5,121) (31,564}
2,147,581 1,676,847 5,013,865 -
Dun within Dug Due Due after
3 maonths batwean betwean 5 years
4 and 12 1and 5
manths years
€000 €000 €000 €000
3172 2822 4 551 -
(1,302,432) (2,053,127) 15,061,498} -
1,354 567 _1,BBE 522 4857081 -
60,307 {163,883) (418, B68) -
1,698,421 2,258,288 3,384,353 &

The Company has extended |oan faciities 1o relaled parties and 1o the extent that these loan fackties are

undrawn at the reporting date this represents a fulure lending commidment.

Potential cash outfiows from undrawn loan facilitizs at the reporting date are shown in the table below at the
earliest possible draw down date. The cash flow effect of probable future relsted party borrowing requirements
is manitored through regular cash fiow forecasts provided o the Company by the refated panties.

Undrawn commitments at
31 March 2018

Lindrawm laan commitments

Total

120/218

Duse within Due Dua Due after
3 montha bBetwean Between 5 years
4 and 12 Tand &
maontha years

€000 €000 €000 €000
3,240,566 - =
3,240,566 . -
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV

Undrawn commitments at Due within Due Due Due after
31 March 2017 3 montha betwaeen botwaan 5 years

4 and 12 1and 5

maonths years
€'000 €000 €000 €000

Undrawn loan commitments 2853033 - -
Total 2,853,033 - . .

3168 Price risk

The Compaiy is not significantly exposed to equiy price risk or commodity price risk
3.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The fallowing financial instruments are subject 1o enforceable master natiing agreements:

As at Gross Gross Nat Net
31 March 2018 amounts of amounts of collateral assats |
recognised recognised exchanged (liabilities)

financial financial

assets liabilitias
€000 €000 €000 €000

Dorivative financial instruments

Colfateralized 205,861 (348 340) 180,400 38,021
Derlvalive fnancial instruments
Nan- Collalmrlized a5 = - a5
Total 205,556 (348,340) 180,400 38,056
As &t Gross Gross Mat Mat
31 March 2017 amounts of amounts of collateral assets |
recognised recognised oxchanged (liabilities)
fimancial financial
assots liabdlities
€000 €000 €000 €'000

Deriwative financial instruments

Cataleralized 520679 (204 683) (T1.700) 63,296
Derivalive financal instruments
Nan- Colateralized 15 . - 15
Total 520,694 {204,583) {271,700} 53,311
~ FORLIDEMTIFICA Ty
& Eensy & Yooy
ACTNINTARTS -
£
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32

3z

Finzncial instruments ane setfled on & gross basis, however, each party lo @ masier natting agreemant wil
hawe the option to setie all such amounts on a net basie in the event of default of the other party, All financal
ingliurnents on the Statemeant of Sinancial position are shown an a gross bagis,

Falr value of financial instruments

Fair value |s defined as the price that would be recelied when seling an assel o pakd when transfarring &
Habiity in &n ordedy ransaclion betwean market participants at the measurement date

Financial assets and liabilities at fair valug in the statement of financial pesition

The table balow analyses financial instrumants camied &t fair value, by valuation method, The differen levals
have been defined &s follows:

Level 1 - Quated prices (unadjusted) in active marcsts for identical aszels and liabilties;

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbsansabla for the aaeet ar Einbéity,
gither direclly (fhal is, as prices) or indirecily (that is derived from prices);

Leved 3 — Inputs for the assat or Eabiity thal are nat based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
Inputs),

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Lewel Level | Lavel Total | Leval Leval | Level Total |
1 2 3 1 2 3
€000 €000 | €000 €000 | €000 €000 | €000 €000 |
Financial Assots
fvagable for  sale - - 1118 1,118 . - 1118 1,115
Investment — relaied
COMpany
Detvativa - 205,506 - 205506 - 520604 - 520,684

financial nstrumenis

Financial Liabilities

Dorivative = MBMO = 348340 - 204683 - 204,883
financial Inafruments

Thers were na transfars bobweoen lovel 1, level 2 and kevel 3. Furihar considerations have led to the conclusion
that the Availabie for sale investiment ehould be, and shouwld have been, classified as 8 Leved 3 Financial Asset.

%)
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

322 Fimancial assets and ilablilties not measurced at fair value In the statement of financial position

The foliowing tables compare the carying value and falr valus o thase fnancial assels and liabilites not
presented on the staternent of financial position at fair vaiue,

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Level 2 Level 2
Carrying Value |  Fairvalue | Carrying Valus Fair valug
€000 €000 €000 €000
Financial assais
Loans to realed parties B.741070  8.816,480 7,317,066 7384 852
‘Guaranize fed recaivabla 743 7431 5,332 5,332
Financlal labilitios
Loans payable graup company - . 382,597 382,800
Loans payebie bank 1367232  1,380112 1,211,120 1,227,707
Commercial paper 2,453,847 2,453,947 1,504,171 1,504,171
Euro medium tesm notes 4835731 4851570 4,112,853 4177245
Related paty guarantes 7431 7431 5,332 5332
Financial assats

The fair walue calculation for loans to related padies is based on discounting expected fulure cash flows using
an estimated discount rale that raflects the sxpected fullre intéres! rales., derived freen quoted mackot rates at
the raparting date. Early setllements, cradit losses and crodit spread assumplions are reviewed periodically,
bt currently ane not relovant 1o this class of assets,

Statistical methods are usad that divide receivables ino segmants by type of receivabies and contraciual term,

Flmancial labilities
The fair value of borrewings is based on current market prices where avalable, Fair value of EMTN |s based
on the discounted cash flow madel 1hat incorporates observable inputs inchiding interest rate yield curves and
Ihe approgriate discount rate for the cunency Bnd tenor of the cash flow. Whare active market prices are nof
avaiabla, the fair value of fived interes! berrawings is based on fulure cash Nlows discounted a1 the curent
rate for skmilar debis or assels with the same remaining muturities,

33.  Events occurring after the reporting dats

Thare are no events after the raporting date to disclose.

Board of Managamant
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B,

Other Information
Retalned Eamings
In sccordance with Arficie 21 of the Arlleles of Association, refained esamings are al the disposal of the shareholder

in the general mesting. Subject 1o the Company baing i a peofitable position, the Board of Mana )
b 5 gement may
decide b pay an interim dividend subject to the approval of the sharehalder in (he general meating.

Independent Auditor's Report

The indepandant auditar's raport |s sel oul an page 41,

crm
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[€H) 29 28
27

) 29 22

€)) 24 29 28

19

%) 29 28
27

) 29 13

(6) 29 22

@) 29 26
29 13

®) 29 26
29 13

® 29 10

(10) 29 10

(11) 29 12 19

(12) 29 12 22

29 13
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29 13
(15) 30
(16) 30 18
1 30 30

29 13
(18) 30 18
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
( )| 25,601,911 | 27,234,521 | 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510
( ) 2,441,080 2,892,828 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429
( ) 1,823,119 2,173,338 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983
( ) 2,892,501 3,294,275 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256
( )| 15,218,987 | 17,647,329 | 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076
( ) 41,437,473 | 47,729,830 | 47,427,597 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249
() 4,564.74 5,334.96 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65
() 575.30 688.02 741.36 605.47 842.00
() 574.92 687.66 735.36 599.22 832.78
() 34.9 35.2 35.3 35.9 37.2
() 13.7 13.9 13.8 10.6 13.7
() 10.1 12.2 8.0 10.0 8.1
( ) 3,646,035 3,685,753 4,460,857 3,414,237 4,210,009
( ) 4,336,248 3,813,490 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092
( ) 919,480 306,045 423,571 375,165 449,135
( ) 2,041,170 2,284,557 2,939,428 2,995,075 3,052,269
) 338,875 344,109 348,877 364,445 369,124
1 [ 85,778] [ 85,848] [ 86,843]| [ 86,005]| [ 84,731]|
)
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110 111 112 113 114
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
11,042,163 | 11,209,414 | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443
1,838,450 2,125,104 2,284,001 1,801,736 2,238,140
1,416,810 1,690,679 1,810,370 1,529,911 1,859,312
397,049 397,049 635,401 635,401 635,401
3,447,997 3,417,997 3,337,997 3,262,997 3,262,997
— — 47,100 47,100 47,100
8,920,439 | 10,184,271 | 10,859,443 | 11,365,784 | 12,040,947
13,609,725 | 15,128,623 | 16,100,209 | 16,592,167 | 17,522,303
2,812.17 3,235.44 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72
165 200 210 210 220
( 65) ( 75) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
— — 52 105 158
« - « - ( 26.0) ( 52.5) (79.0)
447.09 535.22 581.08 506.96 628.31
446.81 534.95 575.64 500.65 620.85
65.5 67.3 67.4 68.5 68.7
17.3 17.8 17.2 13.8 15.9
13.0 15.7 10.2 11.9 10.9
36.9 37.4 36.1 41.4 35.0
68,240 70,037 72,721 73,875 74,890
[ [ 9,571]| [ 9,947 [ 10,371]| [ 10,700]| [ 10,905]
)
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@

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
1,403,819 1,645,393 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884
297,528 367,586 330,190 215,447 280,769
193,690 235,090 232,719 148,687 509,930
291,338 383,235 82,594 117,191 439,270
1,707,831 2,091,538 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310
18,595,330 | 22,079,002 [ 21,379,657 | 22,188,626 | 22,669,700
( ) | 1,077,281.39 | 1,319,596.49 | 1,372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41 | 1,721,667.31
() 123,330.69 | 149,691.36 |  148,181.83 94,674.94 |  324,692.91
() = = - - =
() 9.1 9.4 10.1 10.2 11.9
() 12.5 12.5 11.0 6.7 20.5
() — — — — —
) 9,130 9,463 9,670 10,172 10,364
(1,255) (1,380) (1,536) (1,548) (1,450)

(

)
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@

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
123,457 114,146 41,846 39,854 58,411
116,150 107,950 30,975 28,947 47,297
110,478 101,148 27,192 26,160 42,983
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
430,039 532,181 556,311 581,408 624,560
438,829 542,196 562,541 589,136 633,111
273,823.53 338,861.06 354,225.54 370,206.23 397,682.51
70,345.90 64,405.56 17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48
97.9 98.2 98.9 98.7 98.6
29.5 21.0 5.0 4.6 7.1
89 87 86 79 73
(13) (14) an (18) (16)

(

)
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( ) 100

1982

1987
1988

1989
1990
1993
1996
1998
1999
2000

2001

2002

2004

2005

2006

2007
2008
2011
2013
2017

Seabanc GE
(
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)

(UK)
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 114,500
St Leonards, ( )
New South Wales, 120.000 100
Australia ’
( 86.8
Bangkok, Thailand (0'1)
15,100 )
3,100,000 100
38
)
Sandton, Gauteng, ( ) 33.3
South Africa 4,695 (33.3)
( )
3,746,104 33.4
5
( )
)
( )

10
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(D)
2018 31
)
1,908
3,376
719
4,288
C ) 73
10,364 (1,450)
)
( )
)
C )
@
2018 31
) ) ) C )
73 (16) 44.7 7.7 10,610
) )
( ) )
(©)

143/218



€Y)

@
@
®
©)
®
©)

144/218

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

30

@

®

145/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

*

o

&)

35
282

146/218



46

61

447
1,642
3,728
1,106
)
986
3,430
17 5,835
9,010
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9,788
2,496 603
5,099 3,612
584 185
167 472 183
74 288
1,023
418
70
494
22 6,697 4,810
2,767 861
19 9,363 396
2,228 10 352
7,333 4,414
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( ) )
1,543,219 7.0
12,834,923 2.7
1,380,701 5.9
4,655,193 16.8
20,414,037 2.4
)
( ) )
164,289 4.8
1,372,895 8.1
98,635 7.7
343,063 16.8
1,978,884 9.2
)
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ooooooo
( )
2,148,565
2018 31
( ) )
4,350,779 100.0
4,350,779 100.0
2018 31
( )
)
1,908
1,001 | 11,866 425 | 13,293 ¢76)
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S)
2018 31
( )
( )
(Plano 744 | 10,879 2,85 | 23,483 §%Sg§
Texas, U.S.A.)
()
2,380
)
€y
( 2018 2019 31 )
1,709,856
23,756

)
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(€))
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 _ _
)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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)
(2018 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2018 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2018 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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(D)

1985
2015
2018

201
1963 018 )

2018

2018

1984
2013
2018
1962 ()

2018

1990
2013

2016

1961 2016 )

2016

1978

2007

2011

2012

1954 2015 )

2015 11

2016

2016
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(

)

1959 14

1981

2013

2015

2016

1948 10 23

1972

2001

2004

2007

2010

2015

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

(

)

1957 12 26

1982

1998

2007

2012

2015

2017

2018

(

)

1963 10 19

1986

2015

2016
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1959
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2015

2016
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1957

24
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)

1962

28

1984

2013

2018

2018

(

)

1963

25

1985

2018

2018

(

)

2019
2020
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404

13

199
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454
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
69 — 71 -
83 29 83 37
152 29 154 37
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@
( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
289,745 389,639
, 14,271,039 , 14,721,212
1,171,609 1,342,045
720,108 570,787
530,361 724,128
157,152 164,242
16,825,712 17,583,571
C ) , 4,485,848 , 4,350,779
9,701 9,262
4,495,549 4,360,042
38,910 38,017
450,768 468,002
377,684 220,065
828,453 688,068
5,362,913 5,086,128
22,188,626 22,669,700
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( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
730,858 919,723
) 1,857,561 1,629,396
2,199,567 2,321,393
3,762,251 3,891,614
1,088,421 1,138,967
9,638,660 9,901,095
6,174,529 6,253,109
, 3,061,079 3,046,051
971,403 646,097
51,103 90,036
10,258,115 10,035,293
19,896,775 19,936,389
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,035,293 2,545,223
2,273,718 2,783,648
5,077 560
4,065 2,667
13,908 81,877
4,766 79,770
22,898 29,432
2,291,850 2,733,310
22,188,626 22,669,700
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( )
( 2016 ( 2017

2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,812,554 1,978,884
1,228,091 1,325,249
584,463 653,635
395,160 403,990
189,303 249,645
— 1,042
4,544 3,658
21,335 24,939
2,287 2,433
28,167 32,073
924 732
906 —
193 216
2,023 949
215,447 280,769
— 361
— 361
215,447 281,130
57,671 66,089
4,799 298,860
62,471 232,770
152,976 513,901
4,289 3,971
148,687 509,930
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( )
( 2016 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
152,976 513,901
17,292 5,637
213 799
18,743 68,653
38 460
35,785 74,630
117,191 439,270
113,414 434,805
3,776 4,465
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2016 2017 a1 )

( )

78,525 159,900 1,886,139 2,124,564

148,687 148,687

467 467

— — 149,154 149,154

78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
22,369 4,280 3,855 30,506 18,597 2,173,667
148,687
467
17,292 215 17,764 35,272 4,300 30,971
17,292 215 17,764 35,272 4,300 118,182
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850

165/218




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

oOoOooodn
2017 2018 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
509,930 509,930
— — 509,930 509,930
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850
509,930
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 68,469
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 441,460
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310
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(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

)
(IFRS)

2019

ASU 2016-13

2019 12 15
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(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
1,114,614 1,201,420
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
34,057 38,348
19,434 20,086
581 641
581 641
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
2,823,854 3,117,270
40,552 55,355
11,925 11,954
2,876,331 3,184,580
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
3,073,455 3,316,588
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
2,136,916 2,016,371
557,383 618,786
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
— 6,526
1,065,117 1,033,111
984,608 899,192
13,834 16,494
43,201 43,018
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(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
2,025,768 1,906,199

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
1,964,468 1,830,019
557,383 618,786
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(2016 (2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
78,480 88,143
108,252 99,850
(2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
( )13,924 ( )2,860
(2016 (2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
2,636 3,380
24,454 4,567
27,090 7,947
9,797 2,309
17,292 5,637
1,864 293
1,570 1,493
293 1,199
80 400
213 799
18,743 68,653
38 460
35,785 74,630

171/218



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

)
( 2016 2017 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
( 2017 2018 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
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( )
( )
€))
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
538,402 580, 852
376,359 421,497
71,509 79,856
843,253 922,493
@
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
120,382 151,267
107,063 131,782
81,815 108,781
37,887 48,564
13,042 14,990
1,485 1,706
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
199,594 218,521
149,610 166,135
114,115 115,233
51,351 55,494
19,514 22,061
4,216 3,405
( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
724,938 700,877
694,583 664,387
1,419,521 1,365,264
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VaR VaR
( 20 95 250 )

2017 31 2018 31

27,955 17,749

VaR

ALM

*
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« )
(2017 31 )
)
(6H) 289,745 289,745 —
@ 14,271,039
) 130,633
14,140,406 14,255,936 115,530
) ( 795,249
) 23,824
771,425 835,067 63,642
(O 1,121,951 1,121,951 —
16,323,528 16,502,700 179,172
[€H) 730,858 730,858 —
[©) 3,762,251 3,762,251 —
®) 8,374,096 8,509,343 135,246
“ ) 4,918,640 4,933,833 15,192
17,785,847 17,936,286 150,439
)
106,858 8,348 98,509
524 3,684 3,160
107,382 12,033 95,349
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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(2018 31 )
)
(€H) 389,639 389,639 —
@ 14,721,212
) 133,470
14,587,741 14,634,539 46,797
@) ( 920,548
) 28,153
892,395 959,946 67,550
(O] 986,736 986,736 —
16,856,513 16,970,861 114,348
€)) 919,723 919,723 —
() 3,891,614 3,891,614 —
®) 8,574,502 8,624,779 50,276
O] ) 4,675,447 4,685,542 10,094
18,061,288 18,121,659 60,371
)
8,999 40,607 49,607
227 917 690
8,772 41,525 50,297
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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o
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*

€Y @

®

*

2017 31 2018 31

48,926 52,054

4

178/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

(2017 31 )
(¢ )
289,745 — —
6,029,882 7,486,870 580,218
280,293 504,156 4,990
155,119 109,183 17,492
26,391 6,672 21,928
379,786 374 —
561,298 116,231 39,421
7,161,218 8,107,257 624,631

(2018 31 )

( )
389,639 — —
6,109,695 7,775,730 654,504
322,978 582,663 4,494
174,561 138,254 12,978
4,200 4,894 22,703
288,468 — 361
467,230 143,148 36,044
7,289,544 8,501,542 695,043
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(2017 31 )
(¢ )
730,858 — —
3,762,251 — —
2,201,095 5,438,320 759,014
1,857,561 2,933,790 127,288
8,551,766 8,372,110 886,302
(2018 31 )
( )
919,723 — —
3,891,614 — —
2,322,871 5,714,413 560,609
1,629,396 2,858,146 187,904
8,763,606 8,572,560 748,513
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(2017 31 )
( )
6,157 3,094 3,062
10,674 10,453 220
27,616 27,491 125
125,549 120,423 5,125
169,998 161,463 8,534
41 4 —
271,254 272,027 772
27,540 27,555 15
653,116 653,147 31
951,952 952,771 818
1,121,951 1,114,234 7,716
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(2018 31 )

( )
5,350 2,118 3,232
1,803 1,669 134
10,331 10,316 14
9,434 9,179 255
26,920 23,283 3,637
52 52 —
322,258 324,746 2,487
21,237 21,435 197
616,267 617,597 1,329
959,815 963,830 4,014
986,736 987,113 377

(2016 2017 31 )
( )
43,661 26,103 _

( 2017 2018 31 )

182/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
( )
(2017 31 )
@
( )
26,251 — 119 119
453,568 — 1,423 1,423
968,592 737,553 100,191 100,191
373,054 305,268 10,285 10,285
484,553 309,157 30,133 30,133
1,590,934 1,080,184 63,827 63,827
3,896,956 2,432,164 17,819 17,819
)
@
( )
4,871,098 4,026,148 7,838 7,838
10,684,777 6,701,472 18,270 18,270
53,064 27,372 177 177
3,365 — — —
179,685 89,842 236 236
15,791,991 10,844,835 26,168 26,168
)

183/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

ooooooo
@
( )
40,874 13,330 3,162
40,874 13,330 3,162
)
@
( )
4,000 4,000 144
7,000 5,000 15
71,000 31,000 393
82,000 40,000 522
)

184/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
(2018 31 )
@
( )
16,931 — 124 124
410,392 — 5,609 5,609
848,012 747,395 20,982 20,982
389,860 373,569 2,245 2,245
418,852 250,504 20,073 20,073
336,736 236,954 18,258 18,258
1,666,396 1,080,667 24,326 24,326
4,087,182 2,689,001 10,465 10,465
)
@
( )
4,897,532 3,911,401 57,155 57,155
10,805,452 6,777,954 87,293 87,293
134,442 89,150 56 56
97,890 — 60 60
15,935,317 10,778,507 30,141 30,141
)
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@
( )
12,623 2,719 822
12,623 2,719 822
)
@
( )
34,000 34,000 219
5,000 5,000 3
104,500 104,500 120
143,500 143,500 95
)
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(
1,898
1,941
@
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
394,616 411,080
397,339 403,946
2,723 7,134
@
28.8 (2016 2017 31 )
27.7 (2017 2018 31 )
(©)
(€Y)
@
( 2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
26,322 28,771
1,535 1,730
580 608
599 1,038
931 1,337
28,771 31,408
@
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(©)
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

20,154 22,088

13,535 16,534

6,619 5,553

8,616 9,320

15,236 14,873

15,258 14,873

22 —

15,236 14,873
O]

( 2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )

1,535 1,730

676 951

2,212 2,681
©)
®)

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
0.1 3.8 0.1 3.5
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)
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
49,755 35,563
7,593 104,177
41,181 67,887
98,529 207,628
2,528 6,474
96,001 201,153
944,419 748,731
69,521 32,172
1,013,941 780,903
« ) 917,940 579,750
) )
( ) ( )
— 66,592 — 73,237
- 9,208 - 16,898
— 22,337 — 23,789
— 971,403 — 646,097
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
30.7 30.7
— 113.3
2.2 2.4
0.5 2.2
29.0 82.8
2017 12 22 35 21
308,313
321,699 13,386
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)
( 2016 2017 31 )
( )
) )
156,794 | 1,270,547 | 91,588 | 1,518,930 | 293,624 | 1,812,554 — | 1,812,554
202 4,064 593 4,860 | 15,984 20,844 | 20,844 —
156,996 | 1,274,612 | 92,182 | 1,523,791 | 309,608 | 1,833,399 | 20,844 | 1,812,554
22,469 68,779 | 11,692 102,941 | 90,708 193,650 4,346 189,303
1,442,503 |13,196,365 1,303,814 (15,942,683 (3,985,813 (19,928,497 — 19,928,497
835 176,622 | 32,243 209,701 | 111,057 320,759 | 10,509 310,249
5,061 629,023 | 24,419 658,503 | 23,343 681,847 25 681,872
6,395 68,487 4,711 79,594 | 28,657 108,252 — 108,252
)
€Y 4,346
) 10,509
9,154 320,112
73,882 288,592
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( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
) )
164,289 | 1,372,895 | 98,635 | 1,635,821 | 343,063 | 1,978,884 — | 1,978,884
300 4,563 598 5,462 | 16,536 21,999 | 21,999 —
164,590 | 1,377,458 | 99,234 | 1,641,283 | 359,600 | 2,000,884 | 21,999 | 1,978,884
28,876 110,669 | 16,349 155,895 | 96,906 252,801 3,156 249,645
1,543,219 12,834,923 1,380,701 |15,758,844 |4,655,193 [20,414,037 — |20,414,037
679 220,107 | 34,687 255,474 | 126,578 382,052 | 11,509 370,543
5,197 672,731 | 25,397 703,326 | 28,295 731,621 21 731,643
6,550 57,600 3,044 67,195 | 32,654 99,850 — 99,850
)
€Y 3,156
) 11,509
9,100 355,877
82,080 335,548
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2016 2017 31 )
90
€Y)
)
156,794 1,220,234 435,526 1,812,554
)
@
)
6,106 4,284,283 205,159 4,495,549
10
2017 2018 31 )
90
o
)
164,289 1,316,050 498,544 1,978,884
()
@
)
3,076 4,114,807 242,158 4,360,042
10
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(2016 2017 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
9,050
635,401 100 12,590
248,130
)
( 2017 2018 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
150,970
635,401 100 32,780
138,990
)
)
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2016 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,444,732 41 1,721,667 31

94,674 94 324,692 91

2016 2017

2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
148,687 509,930
148,687 509,930
1,570,500 1,570,500

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

2,291,850 2,733,310
22,898 29,432
2,268,952 2,703,878
1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2005 449,997 479,998 [ 0.00 2017
) (99,999)
2018 1.93 2027
2012 1,003,863 1,102,520 | 1.42 [ ( ) 2017
() (325,828)
() 2018 [ 3,090 [ 2,450 36.60 2024
)
47,400 59,300
1,580 1,348
3,000 5,500
4,700 6,000
1,036 1,504
2,000 2,000
33,000 36,104
3,000 5,000
1
800
1
2007 6,920,235 6,991,983 | 0.00 2017
(1,895,565)
) 2018 [ 41,032 [ 43,394 29.48 2046
)
) 10,588 11,319
2,928 3,101
1,605 1,830
1,551 1,327
7,000 6,750
9,447 9,814
380 115
366 98
1
97
1
8,574,502
— — 8,374,096 (2.321.393) - —
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2,322,871

1,788,527

1,326,126

1,444,889

1,154,870
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( ) ( ) )
730,858 919,723 2.62 —
1,857,561 1,629,396 2.38 —
1,065,117 1,033,111 2.12 —
) 3,061,079 3,046,051 2.19| 2019 2036
960,650 873,088 1.96 | 2019 2022
3,762,251 3,891,614 1.65 —
)
)
1,257,388 911,868 503,185 185,705
523,441 246,874 90,985 11,787
100
@
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( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
4,008 3,755
6,943 7,112
9,050 150,970
592 562
20,594 162,400
93 70
24 2
19,787 19,072
199,983 207,193
100,319 105,218
248,130 138,990
203 162
568,423 470,637
568,541 470,710
589,136 633,111
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( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

3,961 4,246
2,363 2,782
6,325 7,028
1,401 1,522
7,727 8,550
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
422,204 465,188
422,204 465,188
579,254 622,238
2,154 2,321
2,154 2,321
581,408 624,560
589,136 633,111

200/218



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

Ogoooood
( )
( 2016 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
26,433 43,661
13,420 14,749
39,854 58,411
7,649 8,388
7,649 8,388
32,205 50,022
4,227 5,262
27,977 44,760
640 662
476 412
922 1,246
— 295
10 12
2,049 2,629
1,055 —
24 92
1,080 92
28,947 47,297
28,947 47,297
3,175 4,335
388 21
2,786 4,313
26,160 42,983
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( 2016 2017 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 396,044 553,094 3,216 556,311
26,160 26,160 26,160
) 1,062 1,062
— — 26,160 26,160 1,062 25,097
78,525 78,525 422,204 579,254 2,154 581,408
( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 422,204 579,254 2,154 581,408
42,983 42,983 42,983
) 167 167
— — 42,983 42,983 167 43,151
78,525 78,525 465,188 622,238 2,321 624,560
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)
(2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
640 644
(2016 (2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,139 1,835
1,151 1,072
477 748
158 138
112 121
)
(2017 31 )
( 193,580 6,402 )
(2018 31 )
( 200,381 6,812 )
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(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
110 205
175 192
270 184
164 164
48 42
40 38
810 827
175 170
635 657
45 45
945 1,023
991 1,069
356 412
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

30.7 30.7

26.8 27.0

5.6 5.5

0.1 0.0

9.6 9.1
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) ( )

231,900 8,116

7,280,000 5,350

829,155 4,845

8,341,055 18,312

) ( )

327,434,107 759

— 759

( ) | ( ) | ( ) | ( ) ( )| ¢ )

( )

— — — 251 180 19 70
— — — 199 196 4 2

@

®)
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( )
2018 31
( )
2018 31
EU-IFRS
2018 31
( ) 2018 31
2018 31
2018 31
EU
Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties Wta
Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij
assurance-opdrachten Vio
( )

Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels
accountants VGBA
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2018
0.5

31
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2018 31 2017 26

EU

EU-1FRS
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EU 11

2018 24

R.A.J.M
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Independent auditor’'s report

To: the shareholder and board of management of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) B.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 included in the annual report and the
financial statements

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of
Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Toyota
Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. as at 31 March 2018, and of its result and its cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2018 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018
The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2018: the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows
The notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. (the Company) in accordance with the EU
Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities,

the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a
regulation with respect to independence), and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore, we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code
of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Materiality
Materiality €46 million
Benchmark applied 0.5% of total assets (total current assets and non-current assets) as at
31 March 2018.
Explanation We have applied total assets as we believe that this benchmark is the most

appropriate metric for the performance of the Company. The holders of the notes,
debt and loans issued by the Company are most interested in the proceeds of the
loans to related companies, which almost represent total assets.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for
the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the board of management that misstatements in excess of €2.3 million, which are identified during
the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on
gualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the financial statements. Compared to last year, we do not consider the “valuation of derivatives” a key
audit matter, given the availability of relevant inputs with limited subjectivity

(no adjustments) for valuation. There are no other changes to the key audit matters compared to last year. The key
audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed. We have communicated the key audit
matters to the board of management.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk The main activity of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. is to operate as a financing company
of the Toyota Group, raising funds from third party lenders through bond issuance, loans and other
facilities. The Company is exposed to the risk that a Toyota Group company defaults on meeting its
obligations.

As loans to related companies represent the most significant proportion of the Company’s current
and non-current assets, any impairment may have a material impact on the financial statements. As
such we identified valuation and existence of loans to related companies as key audit matter.

We refer to note 14 of the financial statements that reflects that the board of management did not
identify any objective impairment triggers in respect of the loans to related companies.

Our audit In our audit, we have applied mainly substantive audit procedures on the balances of loans to

approach related companies. The substantive audit procedures included detailed assessment of loan
contracts and detailed analytical reviews. We obtained loan confirmations to determine the
existence of the loans. We have reviewed key judgments and estimates made by the board of
management to assess the requirement for any specific loan loss provision.

Key Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify evidence of material misstatement in the
observations valuation and existence of intercompany loan balances.

Report on other information included in the annual report and the
financial statements

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, the annual report and the financial
statements contains other information, that consists of:

The report of the board of management

Other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding, obtained through

our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements

of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is
substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The board of management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the report of the

board of management in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as
required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement
We were engaged by the board of management as auditor of the Company on 26 June 2017, as of the audit for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

No prohibited non-audit services
We have not provided prohibited non-audit services as referred to in Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation
on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities.

Other non-prohibited services provided

In addition to the statutory audit of the financial statements, we provided Comfort letters in connection with (i) the
Information Memorandum for the Medium Term Note Programme and (ii) the secondary distribution (Uridashi) by
Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV.

Description of responsibilities regarding the
financial statements

Responsibilities of the board of management for the financial statements

The board of management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Furthermore, the board of management is responsible for such internal control as the board of management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the board of management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the
board of management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting, unless
the board of management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The board of management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all
material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of

our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.
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We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout

the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements.

Our audit included among others:
Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the board of management
Concluding on the appropriateness of the board of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with the board of management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal

control that we identify during our audit. In this respect we also submit an additional report to the

board of management of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV., in accordance with Article 11 of the

EU Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities.

The information included in this additional report is consistent with our audit opinion in this

auditor’s report.

We provide the board of management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of management, we determine the key audit matters: those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Amsterdam, 24 July 2018

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by R.A.J.M. Emmerink
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